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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.
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Financial Highlights
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As at 31 December As at 30 June
2016 2015 2014 2014 2013 2012
R+=A=+-H RAA=1H
“E-Af CZZ-If C—T-WNF "B-WmE C-T-=Ff CT-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FEL FEL FEL FEL TEL
Results E4
- Revenue — & 36,379 217,068 25,865 3,792 3,066 3,003
- Loss -EB# (39,189) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752)
~ Loss per share -BRER
~ Basic (in HK cents) —HK GBIL) (0.62) (2.07) 0.33) 0.07) (0.09) (0.09)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(g55) (E=5) (g=5) (g=E5)
Financial Position BEMRR
— Non-current assets - ERBEE 457,038 57,275 3,446 = = 1
- Current assets -RBEE 25,695 26,486 34,758 4,717 6,717 10,328
- Current liabilities -RBaE 53,765 3,244 1,063 1,105 1,050 2,000
- Non-current liabilities -¥RPEE 206,611 = = = = =
- Equity —#n 222,357 80,517 37,141 3,612 5,667 8,329
Financial Ratios HHLE
- Current assets/Current liabilities ~-RBEE/RHEE 0.5 8 33 4 6 5
- Assets/Equity -BE/ % 2.2 1.0 1.0 1.3 1.2 1.2
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited JREREIREE B AR AR (“Global
Strategic” or the “Company”), we are pleased to report the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$36 million, compared with approximately HK$217
million in previous year. Loss for the year ended 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$39 million, compared with loss of
approximately HK$81 million in previous year. As at 31 December
2016, the Group had bank balances and cash amounting to
approximately HK$15 million.

During the year of 2016, one fund raising activity by way of
subscription had been proceeded to finance for settlement of part
of the consideration for the acquisition 49% of the equity interests in
BEEPHRKAZFABAER AR (transliterated as Yichang Zhongyou
Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.) (“Yichang Zhongyou”) and provide
general working capital to the Group, as well as effectively utilize for
supplying of natural gas pipeline business project in Zhijiang City,
Hubei Province, PRC and daily operation.

As for the commodities trading business is in a great challenge in
pricing in global market, Global Strategic also explore new revenue
streams in IT business, energy resource aspect, but not limit to
natural gas pipeline operation, and fore-coming paper-making
skills and techniques. These opportunities as well as challenges to
the Group success gradually. The Group had bank borrowings in
subsidiary level in order to ensure the development and operation.
The Group will keep to assess each subsidiaries’ operations,
apply expenses management prudently on daily operation and
look for suitable and diversify investment opportunities as well as
expanding the source of income and generating assured cash flow.
We emphasise that all sectors are built up by trustworthy and with
competent expertise, and supported by government policies.

At last, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our directors,
senior management and staff for their support, especially ex-
directors, Mr. Wei Yue Tong, Mr. Fan Wei Guo, Mr. Zheng Jian Peng,
Mr. Zheng Zhu Ping and Mr. Chiu Wai Piu. The Group shall adopt
prudence but enterprising strategies approach in coming future.
We would also like to present our most sincere appreciation to
the shareholders of the Company and business partners for their
ongoing trust and support to Global Strategic.

Weng Lin Lei
Chairman

22 March 2017
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$36,379,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to approximately
HK$217,068,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Trading commodities for the Group has been facing great challenges
in 2016. Its revenue has dropped to approximately HK$32,293,000
in 2016 as compared to approximately HK$216,802,000 in 2015.

The Group’s solutions and technical consultation on e-commerce
integration and application customisation business (“IT Solutions
Business”) had generated approximately HK$1,428,000 in 2016
as compared to approximately HK$266,000 in previous year.
This increase was mainly contributed by the revenue from Logo
Plus Limited (“Logo Plus”), the online sales platform for customer
designed printed garments acquired by the Company on 6
November 2015.

As all the conditions precedent had been fulfilled, completion of
the acquisition (the “Yichang Acquisition”) of 49% equity interest
in Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd. (“Yichang
Zhongyou”) took place on 24 February 2016. Following completion,
Yichang Zhongyou became a 49% indirectly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and its financial results has been consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group.

The business scope of Yichang Zhongyou includes investment in
natural gas projects, provision of natural gas consultation services
and its cooking appliance and accessories. Yichang Zhongyou has
been granted the approval to construct and operate the natural gas
project in Zhijiang City, Hubei Province, the PRC by Hubei Provincial
Development and Reform Commission.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Yichang Zhongyou currently supplies to the industrial parks and
commercial area around Wufeng National Industrial Zone and
Yichang New and High (Technology) District Baiyang Industrial
Zone within Zhijiang City, Hubei Province, the PRC and is planning
to extend its operation to Zhijiang Yaojiagang Chemical Industrial
Zone. The pipeline for the supply of natural gas to the industrial and
commercial areas around Zhijiang Yaojiagang Chemical Industrial
Zone is under construction.

Upon completion of Yichang Acquisition, the Group generated sales
of natural gas and pipeline installation services of approximately
HK$2,658,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016. There has
been a delay on the commencement of natural gas supply for certain
intended customers of Yichang Zhongyou and the Company will
monitor closely the sales operation of Yichang Zhongyou and will
continue to implement the development and construction plan of
natural gas pipeline in an efficient manner.

Analysis on the performance of the Group including revenue and
results of commodities trading business, IT Solutions Business and
supplying of natural gas pipeline business before allocation of the
corporate overheads is set out in note 7 “Segment Information” to
the consolidated financial statements.

The total operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016
decreased from approximately HK$81,853,000 to approximately
HK$41,850,000, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in
staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$39,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: Nil), which
represented the imputed interest expense on non-current interest
free loan from a related party and non-controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$39,189,000, compared with loss of approximately
HK$81,455,000 for year ended 31 December of 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operation is being financed by internally generated
cashflows, bank borrowings and external financing.

The Subscription

On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (as amended and supplemented by the two supplemental
agreements dated 26 November 2015 and 9 December 2015
respectively) (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Mr. Kan Che Kin,
Billy Albert (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe (the "Subscription”) for, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue 1,695,000,000
ordinary shares at the subscription price of HK$0.035 per share or
in the total amount of HK$59,325,000 (the “Subscription”) in order
to finance for the settlement of part of the consideration for Yichang
Acquisition and provide general working capital to the Group.
The subscription price represented a discount of approximately
82.9% to the closing price of HK$0.205 per Share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the date of the subscription agreement
(i.e. 29 September 2015). The Subscription was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting held on 11 January 2016.

On 29 February 2016,
Subscription Agreement had been fulfilled and completion of

the conditions precedent under the

the Subscription took place. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$58.8 million representating a net subscription price of HK$0.035
per share, were utilised as to (i) HK$37.6 million for settlement
of part of the consideration for the Yichang Acquisition; and (ii)
approximately HK$21.2 million for the Group’s general working
capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Amount due to a shareholder

During the year, Mr. Weng Lin Lei (“Mr. Weng”), the chairman, an
executive Director and a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)) of the
Company advanced HK$11,000,000 to the Group, and such amount
was unsecured, interest-free and with a maturity period of 2 years.
The advance was used for the Group’s general working capital
purpose during the year. As at 31 December 2016, the amount due
to Mr. Weng was HK$9,093,000.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties

As at 31 December 2016, the amounts due to Hubei Biaodian
Natural Gas Co., Ltd (“Hubei Biaodian”) and its subsidiary and
Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) and his controlled entities were
approximately HK$118,490,000 and HK$24,443,000 respectively.
Hubei Biaodian owns 41% of Yichang Zhongyou and Mr. Xiong is the
controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian.

Prior to 31 December 2016, all advances from non-controlling
shareholders of the Company were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand, except for RMB65,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,000,000) advanced from Hubei Biaodian which carried
interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum. On 31 December 2016,
Hubei Biaodian agreed to stop charging the Group interest since
then.

All non-controlling shareholders and its related parties agreed to fix
the loan repayment date to 31 December 2018.

The advance made by the above non-controlling shareholders of the
Company during the year were used for Yichang Zhongyou's capital
expenditure purpose.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank Borrowings

During the year, the Group assumed bank borrowings of
RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to HK$21,600,000) upon completion of
the Yichang Acquisition on 24 February 2016. The bank borrowings
carry interest at a variable rate, with an effective interest rate of
8.48% per annum. RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,480,000)
of which has been repaid in November 2016 while the remaining
balance of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$17,100,000) will be
repayable in November 2017. The bank borrowings are guaranteed
and pledged with several properties owned by Mr. Xiong, his spouse
and certain companies held and controlled by him.

As at 31 December 2016,

(@) the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$15,015,000 (as at 31 December 2015:
approximately HK$24,869,000).

(b) the Group’s total borrowings comprised () amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties; (i) amount due to a shareholder of the Company; and
(i) bank borrowings, totalling approximately HK$169,126,000
(as at 31 December 2015: Nil).

(c) the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 35% (as at
31 December 2015: Nil). The gearing ratio was calculated as
the Group’s total borrowings divided by total assets.

(d)  the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.5 (as at 31
December 2015: approximately 8.2).

The management will continue to closely monitor the financial
position of the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no pledge of assets (as at
31 December 2015: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2016 (as at 31 December 2015: Nil).

PROSPECT

The Group will remain full of challenges in the coming year. It is
expected that the Group’s commodities trading business remains
difficult and the Group will seek expanding the network of suppliers
to ensure a stable supply of quality commodities and developing our
customer base in order to achieve better operating performance of
the commodities trading business.

In respect of the IT Solutions Business, the Group acquired Logo
Plus last year with a view to diversify and broaden the income stream
of its IT Solutions Business. Performance of Logo Plus is on track
and it achieved after-tax profit of approximately HK$455,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The Group will continue to focus on
developing the e-commerce sales platform with an aim to enhance
future earnings.

The Group commenced the natural gas operation in Hubei Province,
the PRC upon completion of the Yichang Acquisition during the
year. Coal remains cheaper to dispatch in the PRC, which slowing
the demand on gas conversion by the target customers of Yichang
Zhongyou during the year. The management will monitor closely
the sales operation and formulate strategies to raise the conversion
demand of the target customers. Over the longer haul, the Group
believes that the demand for natural gas will expand due to state
policies mandating environmental protection.

POSSIBLE DISPOSAL

The Group intends to dispose of the entire registered capital of
Honest (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Honest Macao”),
a company established in Macau and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Honest Macau is principally engaged
in the provision of consulting services, date processing and selling
activities. The Group is now negotiating with a potential buyer, which
is an independent third party, to dispose of the Honest Macao. If the
disposal is completed, the proceeds from such disposal will bring an
immediate cash inflow to the Group, which will improve the working
capital position of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Possible Subscription

On 11 October 2016, Smart Target Billion Limited (“Smart Target”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the subscription agreement (as amended and supplemented by
the three supplemental agreements dated 30 November 2016,
4 January 2017 and 24 January 2017 respectively) with, among
others, 5k 218 (Ms. Zhang Bigiong*) and T & (Mr. Wang
Yanbing*), who are the founding shareholders of #5BE 1RIRE A
fR A A] (Xinjiang Guoliyuan Investment Co., Ltd.*) (“Xinjiang Guoliyuan
Investment”), and Xinjiang Guoliyuan Investment and its subsidiaries
(“Xinjlang Guoliyuan Group”) pursuant to which Smart Target has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for and inject RMB105,000,000
(equivalent to HK$121,800,000) into Xinjiang Guoliyuan Investment
(the “Xinjiang Guoliyuan Subscription”).

As at 31 December 2016, the Xinjiang Guoliyuan Group is still in the
progress of undergoing the examination and acceptance procedures
for the new techniques of paper-making with stalks (not only limited
to cotton) as well as sewage treatment during production. Further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company in respect of the
Xinjiang Guoliyuan Subscription as and when appropriate.

CHANGE OF HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has moved
its head office and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong to Room 1216, 12/F., North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1
Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
with effect from 16 June 2016.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi, Macau Pataca and United States dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION ADERREHMBE
POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 46 staff members WR-_ZT— X NE+-A=+—H NEE(EF46
(2015: 28 staff). Remuneration is determined with reference to HZEE (T —AF:28%EE) AEEZ
market terms and the performance, qualifications and experience ZEWHKF WiIKBEERFHERIR EFE N
of the individual employee. Remuneration includes monthly salaries, &BETHZM - FWEIE A EELL
performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits schemes and EREFEFTEIA R EET 2 LERETIE
other benefits such as medical scheme and share option scheme. E#hiEH|- & 18 B & F 5= M AN &= E 2 5l
The Group’s remuneration policies and packages are reviewed by HKEREMNHAE - ARFEKIZADERKL
management on regular basis. The Company has established a ¥ BZE € - EEHMN LR E B - B
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The Directors’ B RAEEHNLEREMET -
emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’ duties,

responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

*

The English translation of Chinese names of the entities are included
for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
translation of such Chinese names.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Weng Lin Lei

Mr. Weng Lin Lei (“Mr. Weng”), aged 46, has been the executive
Director since 16 October 2014 and as the Chairman since 3
June 2016. Mr. Weng holds a Bachelor Degree of Urban Planning
from Tongji University, the PRC. He is a director of Hotex Holding
Limited, a company engaged in commodity trading and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Weng has experience in resources
trading industry.

Ms. Leung Tsz Man

Ms. Leung Tsz Man (“Ms. Leung"), aged 40, has been an executive
Director since 24 August 2015. Ms. Leung holds a Master of
Business Administration from University of South Australia. She
is a member of each the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
She is also the financial controller of the Company. She was a
company secretary of the Company from 11 September 2015 to
15 April 2016. Ms. Leung serves as a senior consultant of Hotex
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Weng, an executive Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee (“Ms. Kwan”), aged 54, has been the independent
non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Ms. Kwan is the
wealth director of FWD Life Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited
and the director and chief executive officer of Roots Management
Co. Ltd., an executive wealth management services company in
Hong Kong. Ms. Kwan has experience in insurance industry in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Ms. Kwan devoted herself in charity and
she is currently the committee member and vice-president of the
examination committee of the Hong Kong CU Movement Charity
Fund. From January 2016, Ms. Kwan is also the chairman and chief
executive officer of World Amateur Golf Championships Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 36, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr.
LEUNG holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce in Accounting and
Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Leung is the
deputy general manager of TL Property Consultants International
Ltd. (“TLP”),
management and consultancy in the real estate sector. Prior to

a consultancy group principally engaged in project

joining TLP, he had worked at a multinational accounting and
auditing firm for about 8 years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (“Mr. Sun”), aged 49, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 24 August 2015. Mr. Sun graduated
from Shanghai Medical Instrumentation College in the PRC in 1988.
Mr. Sun is currently the business development director of Tonbright
Finance Leasing Co. Lid. (AIEREBRE (LB RHER A,
a transportation financing and leasing company focusing on the
provision of automobile financing services in the PRC.

Ms. Huang Yu Jun

Ms. Huang Yu Jun (“Ms.
independent non-executive Director since 24 August 2015, She

Huang”), aged 58, has been an

was a financial manager of a branch office of Shanghai Electric
Ltd. (BB ERBEBREHEE
a subsidiary of Shanghai Electric Group Company

International Economic & Trading Co.,
SBERRNF),
Limited (stock code: 2727, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). Ms. Huang obtained a certificate of accounting
In 2005, she
graduated from Shanghai TV University (now known as Shanghai

profession from Ministry of Finance in the PRC.

Open University) in the PRC with a professional certificate in
business administration.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

COMPANY SECRETARY NEIME
Mr. Chan Hank, Daniel BRI L E

Mr. Chan Hank Daniel (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the BRIE®RL ([FEL])DEZEARRAWE
Company Secretary since 7 October 2016. Mr. Chan obtained B -Z—XFT+HA+tBHREER - RELER
his Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Commerce from Macquarie ZZETZFRSEMNESIE AL LBE (]
University, Australia in 2000. He is a practising solicitor and was ME¥ES+ 8 R A BHREZMIN =
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2003. EE=FREBIEEMER-



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED B BB EEARAT |

EEEWE

Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 51.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the reporting period are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
profits, special reserve and share premium of the Company. The
Company’s reserve available for distribution to its shareholders as
at 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately HK$101,086,000
(2015: HK$66,987,000).
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Weng Lin Lei, Chairman

Ms. Leung Tsz Man

Mr. Wei Yue Tong (resigned on 3 June 2016)
Mr. Fan Wei Guo (resigned on 3 June 2016)

Mr. Zheng Jian Peng (resigned on 3 June 2016)

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Zheng Zhu Ping (resigned on 3 June 2016)
Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun

Ms. Huang Yu Jun
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu (resigned on 16 June 2016)
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Weng Lin Lei, Ms. Kwan Sin Yee will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing on
the date of their respective appointment but is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected Transactions”
below, no Director or connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYIING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%}

EE (5

REAQBABERMAZGE FREER
ERBERLXEIBRERERRBFAGRE
WHEEREREBEE-

EEMETLEAARETRHER —FRNEEA
ELHEE CEERMERMN MR LEZREE
e

BUFRRTESEAEARRRLIRBEH
FHERBEZEZRARRE=F EAR
BARRABERARURNARRRRBF KR
SWERENBEET-

EERRE ZHIEHNZESR

BRI XBER S| — PR EE I BE
EXESCHEERNARR ZERATR
AR RFHETHE R R R R E R RRF
NI ZEAKBELM S BEAZEAR
5 RHRENTEXARMEREFEA R -

EEREETHRAERAQATN
HEBZENKRG HEROKE
ZZEBBRKE

X

—ANEFTZA=t+—B EFERk&&T

ZE—R
BABEBRARE SEMEBEEE (E
EZRBHFRHAEGKRY ([BHRBEGG])SE

XVER) Z B - 1ERA I 0 S (B 75 o B A MY RC 8%
RARBIREEFES MR GROIE362(R BT 17
B2 ERM SR BERIFER EHRAIES. 461K
Il EEETEEZLERREASTHAER
NAI R P ORB AT



22

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREEHEBE R A A | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%

EXEWE

Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYIING SHARES AND

DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

Interests in the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company held by the
Directors and chief executives of the Company:

Name of Director Capacity

Esps &4

Mr. Weng Lin Lei Interest in controlled corporation
PRERE 22 A B

L: Long position

Note: As at 31 December 2016, 1,802,580,000 shares of the Company
were held by Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Samoa with limited liability and is wholly-owned
by Global Strategic Fund Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned
as to 49% of its issued share capital by Hotex Holdings Limited
and as at 51% of its issued share capital by Liang Tan Yi Xing
International Foundation Company Limited. Hotex Holdings Limited
is wholly-owned by Mr. Weng Lin Lei. Liang Tan Yi Xing International
Foundation Company Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wei Yue Tong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the required standard
of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND FERREREMALITRERQITR
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT HREBROZERR AR
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

TE-RNF+ZA=+—H BREZEHK
HIEPIEIB6EREARBETHFE ZER

Fracss B EXIE TR o ESRm AR -
short positions in the share or underlying shares of the Company as ¥ A LT (W ARRAEEXESTHRAL)
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under PR &) 2 8% 15 S48 B8 A% 179 7 % B 7 25 3%
Section 336 of the SFO: B

As at 31 December 2016, other than the interests and short
positions of the Directors disclosed above, the following person (not  Hj
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or it

Number of Shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROME SORESRNE

Approximate

Directly Through percentage
beneficially Interest of controlled of the issued
Name of shareholder owned spouse corporation Total share capital
=R k] FEBTRE
BRRERB BEilER EBED EHEE BE BREDH
Wei Yue Tong 4,480,000 (L) = 1,802,580,000 (L) 1,807,060,000 (L) 31.96%
(Note 1)
nAE (KtzE1)
Global Strategic (Holding) 1,802,580,000 (L) - - 1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
Group Limited (Note 1)
RIRER (FR)SEERAA (PBaE1)
Global Strategic Fund - - 1,802,580,000 (L) 1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
Holdings Limited (Note 1)
RREKESERER (PBaE1)
Hotex Holdings Limited - = 1,802,580,000 (L) 1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
(Note 1)
BEEEBRAF Cikza)
Liang Tan Yi Xing International = = 1,802,580,000 (L)  1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
Foundation Company Limited (Note 1)

ME-EERECEARAA (M)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of shareholder

L

Mr. Kan Che Kin, Billy Albert

BEELE

Key Fit Group Limited

HEREARAT

China LNG Group Limited

TEXAREEERAA

Ms. Sun Li Xia
BEERT

Mr. Wang Yi Xiang
ERALE

FTERFEREMATIREQATR
HREHEROD ZERZRRAE (&)

Number of Shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE SHRERMEE

Directly
beneficially
owned
E#
EZER

1,116,000,000 (L)
(Note 2)
(Kt3k2)

6,500,000 (1)

363,750,000 (L)

Interest of
spouse

EBER

363,750,000 (1)

Through
controlled
corporation
ikl
245

1,116,000,000 (L)
(Note 2)
(BaE2)

1,116,000,000 (L)
(Note 2)
(PaE2)

Total

X

1,116,000,000 (L)

1,116,000,000 (L)

1,116,000,000 (L)

370,250,000 (L)

363,750,000 (L)

Approximate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
HEBTRE
BREDH

19.73%

19.73%

19.73%

6.55%

6.43%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

1. Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Samoa with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Global Strategic
Fund Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned as to 49% of its issued
share capital by Hotex Holdings Limited and as to 51% of its issued
share capital by Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company
Limited. Hotex Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Weng Lin Lei.
Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited is wholly-
owned by Mr. Wei Yue Tong. Accordingly, each of Global Strategic
Fund Holdings Limited, Hotex Holdings Limited and Liang Tan Yi Xing
International Foundation Company Limited are deemed to be interested
in the 1,802,580,000 shares of the Company under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

2. Key Fit Group Limited is owned as to approximately 60.42% by
China LNG Group Limited. China LNG Group Limited is a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and is owned as to
approximately 69.79% by Mr. Kan Che Kin, Billy Albert.

Save as disclosed above, none of the substantial shareholders or
other (other than Directors and chief executive of the Company)
person had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company according to the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2016.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2016 and there
had been no exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants
or similar rights during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). As at 31 December 2016, no option has
been granted by the Company under the Scheme. Particulars of
the Scheme are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any eligible persons
of the Group, including (i) any director, employee or consultant of
the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include any director, employee
or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant
of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv) any person or
entity whose service to the Group or business with the Group
contribute or is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group as may be determined by the Directors from time to
time, to subscribe for shares of the Company. Options granted are
exercisable for a period (up to ten years from the date of grant of the
option) as decided by the Board.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continuead)

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal
value of share; (ii) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day and (i) the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of Shareholders’ approval of the
Scheme. However, the total maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period from time to time, without prior approval
obtained from the Company’s shareholders. No option under the
Scheme has been granted by the Company since its adoption.

On 31 December 2016, the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Scheme is 300,000,000 shares of
HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company, representing
approximately 5.31% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Scheme for the holding of an option before
it can be exercised. There is no consideration for the application
or acceptance of an option under the Scheme. The remaining life
of the Scheme is approximately six years and to be expired on 30
November 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 94.9% of the turnover of the Group and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for about 75.9% of the total
turnover.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(Continued)

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
about 97.5% of the purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for about 91.2% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Details of the subsidiary’s controlling shareholder’s beneficial interest
in the Group are further explained in the section titled “Connected
Transactions” below.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions, details of which were
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement

On 31 December 2015, Yichang Zhongyou and Yichang PetroChina
Ltd (“Yichang Kunlun”) entered into the
upstream natural gas supply agreement (the “Upstream Gas Supply

Kunlun Natural Gas Co.,

Agreement”) pursuant to which Yichang Kunlun agreed to supply and
Yichang Zhongyou agreed to buy natural gas for the period from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

The transaction amount and annual cap (“Annual Cap”) amount of
such transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 are about
RMB878,000 (approximately HK$1,038,000) and RMB15.3 million
respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions - Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement (Continued)

As Yichang Kunlun is owned as to 49% by Hubei Biaodian and
Hubei Biaodian is a substantial shareholder (within the meaning
of the GEM Listing Rules) of Yichang Zhongyou holding 41%
equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou, whereas Mr. Xiong, is the
ultimate controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian and a director of
Yichang Zhongyou, each of Yichang Kunlun and Hubei Biaodian,
is connected person of the Company and the transactions (the
“Continuing Connected Transactions”) contemplated under the
Upstream Gas Supply Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

Given that: (i) Yichang Kunlun is a connected person of the
Company only at the subsidiary level; (i) the Board has approved
the Continuing Connected Transactions; and (iii) having considered
the terms of the Upstream Gas Supply Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Annual Cap),
all the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the terms of the Continuing Connected Transactions are fair and
reasonable, the Continuing Connected Transactions are on normal
commercial terms or better and in the interest of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole, the Continuing Connected
Transactions (including the Annual Cap) are exempted from the
circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
continuing connected transactions are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The management has monitored and ensured that (a) the continuing
connected transactions have been conducted in accordance with
the pricing policies or mechanisms (if applicable) under the Upstream
Gas Supply Agreement, as appropriate; and (b) the Company’s
internal control procedures are adequate and effective to ensure that
continuing connected transactions are so conducted.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions - Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement (Continueqd)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions under Upstream Gas Supply
Agreement and have confirmed that such continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have issued
their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by
the Group in accordance with GEM Listing Rule 20.54 of the GEM
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

On 4 January 2017, Yichang Zhongyou and Yichang Kunlun renewed
the Upstream Gas Supply Agreement (the “Renewed Agreement”)
pursuant to which Yichang Kunlun agreed to supply and Yichang
Zhongyou agreed to purchase natural gas for a term of one year
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 with expected total
quantity supply not more than 10 million cubic metres divided by 365
days and the proposed annual cap is approximately HK$25,000,000.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosures
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any business or interest which competed
or might compete with the business of the Group nor had any other
conflict of interest with the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors

and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Weng Lin Lei
CHAIRMAN

22 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required
Standard during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules,
and considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BEEg (a2
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board’s composition REZE-ZT— X F+-_A=+—HILtFE"
and the individual attendance of each Director at the Board ZE€MHEMESNEBEEZRNEE_Z —/\¢+:
meetings, Board Committee meetings and Shareholder meetings A=+—BItEEHEE Q’SE% BFZ%
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the table EB&€@mNMBERASHBEREN TE
below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of his/her office in the year
HERE/ ERAERTAETERNY
Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ADERR
FE-4-F yHzee RE#ZEE EREES REAE
Executive Directors BiTE
Mr. Weng Lin Lei, Chairman ﬁs/sz?aﬂ (£E) 18/18 N/A 2/2 N/A 1/2
Tam TER
Ms. Leung Tsz Man 2FRLL 18/18 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Tam TERm TER
Mr. Wei Yue Tong BAERE (RZB-RF 10110 N/A 0/0 N/A 2/2
(resigned on 3 June 2016) ~NAZH Eﬂ ) TEA TER
Mr. Fan Wei Guo BREELE(RZE—RE 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
(resigned on 3 June 2016} ~AZH ‘m‘# ) TEm TEm TR
Mr. Zheng Jian Peng® ORrEe (RZ2-1% 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 02
(resigned on 3 June 2016) ~AZBEE) TEE TER THE
Non-Executive Director ¥ynE
Mr. Zheng Zhu Ping* ﬁ%ﬁ?f‘ii (RZB-1F
(resigned on 3 June 2016) ARAZHEfE ) 9/10 2/2 0/0 2/3 12
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BYXHTES
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee BERTL 18/18 3/3 2/2 6/6 12
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 2ENEE 18/18 3/3 2/2 6/6 12
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BEER4 16/18 3/3 12 5/6 0/2
Ms. Huang Yu Jun BEENL 18/18 3/3 2/2 6/6 112
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu EERAE (RZE—RF
(resigned on 16 June 2016) ~NATAB M) 10/10 2/2 0/0 3/3 12
* Mr. Zheng Jian Peng is the son of Mr. Zheng Zhu Ping. * MR ERERMFILE LT

N/A: Not applicable

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held eighteen
(18) Board meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s
financial and operating performance and discuss the business
direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board papers

were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors who could not attend in person could participate the Board
meetings and Shareholder meetings through other electronic means
of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages
16 to 18 in this annual report.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report, Mr. Weng Lin Lei, Ms. Leung Tsz Man, Ms.
Kwan Sin Yee, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun and Ms.
Huang Yu Jun engaged in business activities in their respective fields
as continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to the
Board remain informed and relevant. Ms. Leung Tsz Man and Mr.
Leung Oh Man, Martin have participated in continuous professional
development programs required by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Directors also participated in other
trainings and professional developments such as attending seminars,
studying reading materials relating to the Group or its industries and
businesses; rules and regulations; business management; or the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

CHAIRMAN

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other
directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The non-executive Director of the Company was appointed for a
term of up to about 3 years ending on the date on which the director
shall retire by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Code and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee (“Remuneration Committee”) held
three (3) meetings. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and
approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including that for the
executive Directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to executive
directors and senior management of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines set
out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

The remuneration payable to the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 is within the range
of HK$0 to HK$1,350,000.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which the
Company considers that it will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the
Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, one third of the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continuead)

The Nomination Committee held two (2) meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and work performed included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and the nomination of
new Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
held six (6) meetings and work performed included reviewing the
Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its risk management
and internal control systems, and corporate governance matters for
inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit
and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately HK$900,000 (2015: HK$724,000)
and HK$1,148,800 (2015: HK$52,000) respectively. The non-
audit services provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to the Group
were in relation to the review service on taxation, quarter results,
interim result, limited assurance services on continuing connected
transaction, other professional services related to the Proposed

Acquisition.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2016, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company
on a going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
achieving the Group’s business objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Group maintains an effective internal control and risk
management systems. It consists, in part, of organisational
arrangements with defined lines of responsibility and delegation of
authority, and comprehensive systems and control procedures in
order to safeguard the investment of the Company’s shareholders
and the Group’s assets at all times.

The Audit Committee performs the duties of risk management and
internal control on behalf of the Board to oversee the management
in the establishment, maintenance and monitoring of effective risk
management and internal control systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016 and considered the system effective and adequate. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control by considering the reviews performed by the Audit
Committee. The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems have segmented reviewed by an independent professional
party. The Company complies with the code provisions relating to
internal control contained in the Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The current company secretary is Mr. Chan Hank, Daniel who
replaced Mr. Au Yeung Ho Yin, on 7 October 2016. During the
year, Mr. Au Yeung Ho Yin and Ms. Leung Tsz Man have been
company secretary from 15 April 2016 to 7 October 2016 and from
11 September 2015 to 15 April 2016 respectively. They undertook
totally not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at
www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general
meetings. All shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings and they may put to the Board any enquiries about the
Group through its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk or
in writing sent to the principal office of the Company at Room 1216,
12th Floor, North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. The Chairman,
the Chief Executive Officer, chairmen of board committees (or
their respective delegates) and external auditors attend the annual
general meeting and are available to answer questions raised
by shareholders. Shareholders may also access the Company’s
corporate website for the Group’s information.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%

Bk EERABEE @)

HEz—_F -+ A
+— ¢¢V$‘$IE’JH§E£¥&?%‘B%
TEAERERD BF

5\@ ﬂ(?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ AR EE
FERREERAFEENERIEE -AEE
HA”*IE&WE‘B}%?L? ERBIEEAL
2 2 B o AN X 5] 38 <7 <7 I BT B A B BE
B R STRIES -

DEME
BRMARNEARELE BR-F

¢+ﬂtﬁﬁl*§ﬁkﬁﬁ/u%%$°im : EA”B@
5%%5%%&%—?5Xﬁi/\%hﬁ”\\:;f—/—\¢@

H-HiElif?' /\¢+ﬁtEHﬂF’?&
—AFNA+—HBEZ= /\E@ﬂ‘f’ﬁﬁ
HEETAAWE °TBZ#EA@;|:_7 N

T-A=t—BLFEEEXaHTIMNSE
NERHEBEEE

BRR B

AARHERR —EFBTRARERTER

B R A 74 B www.globalstrategicgroup.
comhkHIERBREF FHREFTE®RSE
NEBRTRERG - ARAIEBAMERR
EEREARE  REASEBDAMEBEwww.
globalstrategicgroup.com.hk » 3k A 2 i 7 5
ERARBBEREIEMERTENELLE

R BEEVRREESILE12E1216Z - [7]
EEeRMAEBEECEE -ARAIEE A
AMERHEMABEC AREEESEREE
RERZIRE -ARRER THEY BT
BTZEE2EF (HERRK) RINEZH
M ERRAFRES  WEESRE 2R -
IRERIMAIBEARR RN EEHAEERER -



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED B BB EEARAT |

AN
fl= E/D#E%

Corporate Governance Report
RZZT—RF+ZA=+—H AsAt31 December 2016

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been changed once in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements of the Group (the “Financial
Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
financial reporting. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made
are prudent and reasonable.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Financial Statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 42 to page 50.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 51 to 147,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS BREITEIE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RSB EIEAIRIEZEENTTHE % 4K
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated R AU ARNHMGAMERRNEAZAEE
financial statements of the current period. These matters were HWEH - ZEZEEEN A XM ITERTERL
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial & M ##HERNMEEE BEFEIE - M A EAD
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we TR EHZSEEHEIEMHBINE R -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREEITEHR AREEMTHENNNEEFARENSE

Acquisition accounting of EE X ARANAE
PR ~ F(Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas Utilisation
Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Zhongyou”)
BEEHRHRAKAABTRABD([EEHRH])Z
WEEsTEE

We identified the acquisition accounting of Yichang  Our procedures in relation to the acquisition accounting of
Zhongyou as a key audit matter due to the significant  Yichang Zhongyou included:

judgement is required in relation to the assets and AZEEITHENEETR AKRESHEERNEFBE:
liabilities that are recognised, particularly the allocation

of purchase price to goodwill and separately identified e Assessing the competence, capabilities and

intangible assets. objectivity of management’s independent valuer, and
AT EET NN ECTEEE T ABESE verifying the qualifications of the valuer; discussing
SAEE L ITBERERREERBEMS  ERHEE the scope of its work with management and
BAE BUEBES I RENEREBFECHNELEEL reviewing its terms of engagement to determine that
AUt e there were no matters that affected its objectivity or

imposed scope limitations upon it;

e FMEHEREBUMAEMOBERN EXKEHIEEE
M URBREEMNER: BEREENRETIESE
REMEZEGR NETTESHZEHTH L
S H jfe hin &5 B R I
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREBEITEHR

Acquisition accounting of EE B X ARANAE
PR A (Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas Utilisation
Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Zhongyou”) (Continued)
BEEHRBRAKAABTRABD([EEHRH])Z
WHEETERE (&)

As stated in note 29, the Group on 24 February 2016
acquired 49% equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou
for a cash consideration of HK$100,000,000. With
all the conditions precedent having been fulfilled and
obtaining control, the acquisition was accounted for as
business combination using the acquisition method,
giving rise to a recognition of intangible assets,
representing the natural gas supply exclusive rights,
of HK$236,400,000 and goodwill of HK$4,556,000 on
date of acquisition.

MM E2opTit - B EM ERER T - RFZ
A Z -+ A BAE & K {E100,000,000/% T W HE H &
A% - BEE PT A ERIGMH I E EER L B G
HliE - ZWEEECRBREEARIEERS O X
BYRWERPERELEE (MRARBRHEERE)
236,400,0007% 7T & i 72 7 4,556,000/ JT °

The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to carry out the purchase price allocation
valuation with respect to the acquisition of Yichang
Zhongyou on the date of completion.
EEECZRE - RBEILIXGEEMN K A AU E
HEFMETHREBESEMGE-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FREMTHES NAEERRETEE

Confirming that the approaches it used are in
compliance with the requirement under HKFRS 3
“Business Combination”;

REFMEAN A EZFa BBV BRMELRFE3R [ %
Badtl mEXR:

Analysing the underlying cash flow used in the
models to determine whether they are reasonable
and supportable;

AR ERER P EANEBRSRE  UEER
EEEBLEEZERE:

ki

Understanding the projected cash flows, including
the assumptions relating to revenue growth rates;
and

THEARERE PREAEANEERENRE:

Involving our internal valuation experts to evaluate
the methodology of the valuation, the methodology
to identify intangible assets arising from acquisition,
inputs used for the cash flow forecast and factors
considered in the discount rate and assess these
rates.

ZRAZBMITHABEEERZETEEES A
BRIWEREEARELEEN L R mETRA A
BMABEARRBREPERENEZ BT EZFL
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREBEITEER

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

B BREEUARYE BERRBNREE

We identified the impairment of goodwill, intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment arising
from Yichang Zhongyou as a key audit matter due
to the fact that Yichang Zhongyou incurred loss of
HK$11,693,000 in the current year since acquisition.

AEBEITHERESETHEENEE BEEEUALY
¥ BELERENREREABRETFE HIHER
HE P h B W AR A FEE 4 E1811,693,0008

JC °

As stated in note 17, the Group engaged an
independent professional valuer to carry out an
impairment assessment by estimating the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit with reference to
value-in-use calculation, which required significant
judgement on assumptions and input adopted in the
underlying cash flows.

M7 Bt EEEEER-RBUER
FEEMETREN G ERREREBEAZEEAMAR
TEABMUMATKECHE EFZHNERRERER
PR YRR AR Mt A (B 1E B K HI T -

According to the assessment, there was no impairment
on the goodwill and intangible assets arising from
the Group’s acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou and
no impairment on property, plant and equipment of
Yichang Zhongyou as at 31 December 2016.

BEFE RZE—AFT+A=+—H TEALAEE
WEEETHER v HEREVEERE BEEEFH
ZME BB MRS IERE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FREMTHES NAEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
included:

AZBMITERRENENETFEE:

° Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of management’s independent valuer, and
verifying the qualifications of the valuer; discussing
the scope of its work with management and
reviewing its terms of engagement to determine that
there were no matters that affected its objectivity or
imposed scope limitations upon it;

e FMHEREBVMAEMNBEIEN EXEHILEE
- WZBREEMNER BEBEIRE TSR
NEREZEGR NETTESFEZEHZH T
%1 Eife i &5 [ PR

° Confirming that the approaches it used are in
compliance with the requirement under HKAS 36
"Impairment of Assets”;

s HWREMKAMDENEBEGTLEREI6 [EE
AR BB

° Analysing the underlying cash flow used in the
models to determine whether they are reasonable
and supportable;

e MR ABAELNHEANHEBRESRE  UBEKRS
EREBREZAE:
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREBEITEHR

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment (Continued)
BE BREEURYE BERI[ENRE (£Z)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FREMTHES NAEERRETEE

Understanding the projected cash flows, including
the assumptions relating to revenue growth rates
and comparing operating margins against historical
performance; and
THREARSRE

BE(ERABRAERENRR) L
LB ETNEREBE

EE

Involving of our internal valuation experts to evaluate
the methodology of the valuation, inputs used for
the cash flow forecast and factors considered in the
discount rate and assess these rates.
ZRARBMITHOAF HEERS BFGEETE
RenemilmAa A AEARRMEXRPEENE
WA EZEL X
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

H ftt &
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

REBEMRBSFEE M BERERRAR
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

s HUEERAFELESERNEEN
TR &R AR IBATEIM ERERRE
BERAFEESHEIBRAEENEXN
THEEME MAREERYE E£EWN
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tse Ming Fai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BHE-_ZTZ—XRXFT_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
o —T-AnF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FET FETT
Revenue ez 6 36,379 217,068
Cost of sales 5 KA (35,341) (216,775)
Gross profit E7 1,038 293
Other income E A YA 38 105
Selling and distribution cost THE Ko $H A A (13,068) (2,881)
General and administrative expenses —#& & 1THE 5 (28,369) (78,972)
Other gains and losses H bz K E1E (374) -
Finance cost B 15 Bk AR 8 (39) -
Loss before taxation Br i A ES 18 (40,774) (81,455)
Income tax credit FriSfiik & 9 1,585 =
Loss for the year FNEE 10 (39,189) (81,455)
Other comprehensive expense RFEEzHMEES M
for the year
Item that will not be reclassified KETGEFSIEZE
to profit or loss: HBwmZIEA -
Exchange differences on translation — ¥ iRkt E A
of financial statements to 2INERELZ
presentation currency ERER (9,553) (60)
Total comprehensive expense rEEE2EXHBAE
for the year (48,742) (81,515)
Loss for the year attributable to: ATATELEEANEE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZF =N (33,224) (81,455)
Non-controlling interests IR = (5,965) =
(39,189) (81,455)
Total comprehensive expense for the A TNATEERFEELE
year attributable to: ¥ AREE
Owners of the Company KRNBEER A (38,083) (81,515)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR A 2 (10,659) =
(48,742) (81,515)

Loss per share — basic EREE-ER 12 HK(0.62) centsi&ll HK(2.07) centsi 1l
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2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E TET FETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BE &K 13 224,270 12,054
Prepaid lease payments AN ERE 14 1,678 -
Goodwill EES 15 4,328 -
Intangible assets mEE 16 226,762 10,220
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEEE &%
Yichang Zhongyou (EERMEE)
(as defined in note 1) BftiEE 18 - 35,001
457,038 57,275
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 123 =
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 & E AR R 19 3,727 1,617
Prepaid lease payments A EKIE 14 33 -
Valued-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable A U [0] 1 (& %%
([EER]) 6,797 =
Bank balances and cash RITHBR RIS 20 15,015 24,869
25,695 26,486
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ERTE 5 REMBER 21 36,665 3,244
Bank borrowings IRITEE 22 17,100 =
53,765 3,244
Net current (liabilities) assets nE (BE)EEFE (28,070) 23,242
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Amount due to a shareholder R AN DB IR R IR
of the Company 23 9,093 -
Amounts due to non-controlling B —RMHEBRRZ
shareholders of a subsidiary JEERR AR 3R M H
and its related parties B8iE 75 38 23 142,933 =
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEAE 24 54,585 -
206,611 -
Net Assets BEEFE 222 357 80,517
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H At31 December 2016

2016 2015
—RE —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FET FHET
Capital and reserves EXRREE

Share capital &N 25 28,275 19,800
Share premium and reserves B0 (B N R 90,097 60,717

Equity attributable to owners of RAGEE ANEGRER
the Company 118,372 80,517
Non-controlling interests FEE R = 27 103,985 -
Total Equity Rk 222,357 80,517

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 147 were S$51BEZEFI4TEFRHZGATHERERER
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 @ —ZE—+F&=ZA -+ -_HHREZFEHEEK

March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: R WHETINEERKREE
WENG LIN LEI LEUNG TSZ MAN
SEE RFX
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EFE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

%Z:n: =z

—RNFE+ZA=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAEEAERL
Non-
Share Capital Share Other Translation Accumulated controlling
capital reserve premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
BA&  EXfE RORE  HttRE  RERE  RHEB Mt FERER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR T TR T TiEn T FiEn
At 1 January 2015 “Z2-1%-f-H 18,000 7,540 49,561 - - (37,960) 37,141 - 37,141
Exchange difference arising BHBEREEEARZS
on translation of ERELIERESR
financial statements to
presentation currency - - - - (60) - (60) - (60)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (81,455) (81,455) - (81,455)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ REEEER
expense for the year PETLAE - - - - (60) (81,455) (81,515) = (81,515)
Issue of ordinary shares BTERR 1,800 - 125,640 - - - 127,440 - 127,440
Expenses incurred in connection BT EBREL ZHY
with issue of ordinary shares - - (2,549) - - - (2,549) - (2,549)
At 31 December 2015 2 nE
I 19,800 7,540 172,652 - (60) (119,415) 80,517 - 80,517
Exchange difference arising BHBEREEERZS
on translation of EREEVERER
financial statements to
presentation currency - - - - (4,859) - (4,859) (4,694) (9,558)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (33,224) (33,224) (5,965) (39,189)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AEEEER
expense for the year FETLAE = - - - (4,859) (33,224 (38,083) (10,659) (48,742)
Issue of ordinary shares BiTLEk 8,475 - 50,850 - - - 59,325 - 59,325
Acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou ~ WEE E
(note 29) (Fi7Eo9) = = = - - - - 99,340 99,340
Deemed capital contribution arising A7 AR R & — B B
from non-current interest free DA HERBRRR
loan from a shareholder of the ~ HE# AR {3 EENE
Company and non-controlling % ,,,,, SRELL
shareholders of a subsidiary and B #E14 ([fzE23)
its related parties (note 23) - - - 16,613 - - 16,613 15,304 31,917
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—R%
+-A=1t-H 28,275 7,540 228,502 16,613 (4,919) (152,639) 118,372 103,985 222,357

The capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital issued by the Company and the fair value
allocated to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries at the date
of acquisition arisen from a group reorganisation in March 2000.

TR A EE LI E A

§$1%{E?E_TTT$ HZEIE BT E
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BHE-_ZTZ—XRXFT_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

| ANNUAL REPORT 2016 £ #&

2016 2015
—"NEF —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FETT
Operating activities =
Loss before taxation br 5 Bl s 18 (40,774) (81,455)
Adjustments for: o
Depreciation of property, M- -WERZREZ
plant and equipment e 5,792 1,789
Amortisation of intangible assets mE EH 8,290 300
Amortisation of prepaid lease AN E FRIB
payments 33 -
Finance cost B 7 A AR 39 -
Interest income B U A (4) (39)
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE- -BE X
plant and equipment B E 374 -
Operating cash flows before LEEEFHEZ
movements REBFEME
in working capital (26,250) (79,405)
Decrease in trade and FEUNE 5 & H b AR FUR
other receivables 138 666
Increase in inventories FEE N (17) -
Increase in trade and other payables  JEfT & 5 K& E 4th BR Z 38 N 789 2,191
Net cash used in operating activites & & EBKE RS /B (25,340) (76,548)
Investing activities KEES
Deposit paid for acquisition of WE—RKBARER
a subsidiary "e - (35,001)
Acquisition of property, WM BB k& E
plant and equipment (82,689) (12,039)
Interest received B FI 2 4 39
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’%%¥ JE
plant and equipment BAEFTIEEE 255 =
Net cash outflow arising from WEEERHEL L
acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou WML FRE 29 (54,971) (8,948)
Increase in VAT recoverable A] Uy [B] 3 (& Fi 1 N (711) =
Net cash used in investing activites ~ & & /Z BN Fr IR & F 58 (138,112) (55,949)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
—NE —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FETT
Financing activities BEEH
Proceeds from issue of BATH S WA TS BB
new ordinary shares 59,325 127,440
Share issue expenses IR EEITR = (2,549)
Advance from a shareholder NN
of the Company 11,000 -
Advances from non-controlling —EMRBAE TR
shareholders of a subsidiary and [i% 2 K HOBEE 5 R
its related parties 86,934 =
Repayment of bank borrowing EEEITEE (3,480) =
Net cash from financing activities BEREMEREFE 153,779 124,891
Net decrease increase in cash and Re hReETEMmDFHE
cash equivalents (9,673) (7,606)
Cash and cash equivalents FHzHERACERE
at the beginning of the year 24,869 32,475
Effect of foreign exchange SNEEREB) 2 B
rate changes (181) -
Cash and cash equivalents FRZRERRESFRE
at the end of the year, represented FEIRTT mnﬁﬁ%&fﬁﬁ
by bank balances and cash 15,015 24,869
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZTZ—XRXFT_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

GENERAL

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”). The immediate holding company is
Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited since 2 September
2014, which is a private limited company established in Samoa.
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider that
the ultimate holding company is Global Strategic Fund Holdings
Limited, which is a private company incorporated in Hong
Kong, since 2 September 2014. Prior to 2 September 2014,
the immediate and ultimate holding company was Champion
Technology Holdings Limited, a company with its shares
listed on the Main Board of the Exchange. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section of
the annual report.

In prior years and up to the acquisition of & & ™1 i X A & 5
F BB AT (Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas Utilisation Co.,
Ltd.”) (“Yichang Zhongyou”) in February 2016, the Group's
functional currency was Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”). The
Directors had evaluated the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates, including the underlying investment
activities and strategy of the Group after the acquisition of
Yichang Zhongyou in February 2016 and have determined
that the functional currency of the Company changed from
HK$ to Renminbi (“RMB”). The effects of the change of the
functional currency of the Company had been accounted for
prospectively during the period. The consolidated financial
statements are continued to be presented in HK$ which is
considered to be more relevant as the shares of the Company
are listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

*

English name is for identification purpose only.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have given careful consideration to the going
concern of the Group in light of the fact that the Group incurred
a net loss of HK$39,189,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$28,070,000. In addition,
as at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitments
amounting to HK$39,919,000 as disclosed in note 31.

As at 31 December 2016, Global Strategic (Holding) Group
Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company,
has agreed to provide sufficient funds to the Group so that
the Group will be able to meet all current obligations as they
fall due in the coming twelve months after the year ended 31
December 2016.

Taking into account the above factors, the Directors are of
the opinion that, together with the internal financial resources
of the Group, the Group has sufficient working capital for
its present requirements, that is for at least the next twelve
months commencing from the date of the consolidated
financial statements. Hence, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

GAMBHRE FREE
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A=+ - BLEFEEEABBEITE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
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Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
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Except as disclosed below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure
Initiative for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need not provide a specific
disclosure required by an HKFRS if the information resulting
from that disclosure is not material, and give guidance on the
bases of aggregating and disaggregating information. However,
the amendments reiterate that an entity should consider
providing additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable users
of financial statements to understand the impact of particular
transactions, events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the
amendments provide examples of systematic ordering or
grouping of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively.
The grouping and ordering of capital risk management,
financial instruments, revenue and segment information have
been revised to give prominence to the areas of the Group’s
activities that management considers to be most relevant
to an understanding of the Group’s financial performance
and financial position. Specifically, capital risk management,
financial instruments, information in relation to revenue and
segment information, were reordered to notes 32, 33, 6, 7,
respectively. Other than the above presentation and disclosure
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 has
not resulted in any impact on the financial performance or
financial position of the Group in these consolidated financial
statements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREEHEBE R A A | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%

e R mKRME ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’
Leases?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported (e.g.
income from pipeline installation services) as the timing of
revenue recognition may be affected, and more disclosures
related to revenue is required. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the directors of the Company performs a detailed review. In
addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Directors consider that the performance obligations
are similar to the current identification of separate revenue
components under HKAS 18, however, the allocation of total
consideration to the respective performance obligations will
be based on relative fair values which will potentially affect
the timing and amounts of revenue recognition. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of HKFRS 15 until the directors of the Company performs a
detailed review. In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in
the future may result in more disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$7,246,000 as disclosed
in note 30. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial
effect until the Directors complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. Specially,
the amendments require the following changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i) changes
from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the
effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position for
liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided on
application.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 7 in the
future may result in more disclosures, however, the Directors
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 7 will not have a
material impact on the financial statement.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s amounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other individual identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from the sales of goods are recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. The
stage of completion of the contract is determined as follows:
Installation fees are recognised by reference to the proportion
of the total cost of the provision of the pipeline installation
service.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_ZT—A"F+_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the supply of goods or provision of services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress as described below) less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. The accounting policies are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 to 180 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a shareholder of the Company,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

BE-_ZT—A"F+_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEESITEE (&)

$RMIE(£)
THEERERTA
EEERRITZESLESTARES

WL ZBEARUNEREBENER
TRAZEEDBEREZRBE REE-

o

TA

@\\

BETRERERARAEREELRR

HARBER 2 RSERZEMNGL-
AEEBRTZREETARESE (4
BRERBEITRA) ARK-

EEFEZL

BERNZEZNFESRAENHHEAAR
REERREEIFESRAXNITE-&E
%*'J%ﬁyﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬂi%ﬁ%ﬁ%(’E%Tﬁ
RERNXBREONAACNHE W
ERNMNE XA E M E ST
B)EEeRMABENEHFRX (MHE
F) B B R E B AR R
FREDFEMMNE -FERAXRERAN X
SEHER o

BB HE AR o #E '

eREB(BRRTERE BENEZR
HADRRR - B AR R I R RIA R A
—FHMEB AR ZIFERRR R A RES
IR ) E 12 8 7 BRI 50K DA 55 Ak A

i



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED B BB EEARAT |

e B mRME (8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

Determining whether intangible assets and goodwill are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of
the intangible assets and the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher of the value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash, a material impairment loss/further impairment loss
may arise.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets and goodwill
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of intangible
asset is HK$226,762,000 (without recognition of impairment),
while the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$4,328,000 (without
recognition of impairment).

Details of the estimation of recoverable amount of the related
cash-generating unit determined by value-in-use calculation are
disclosed in notes 17.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, the management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of property,
plant and equipment according to the experiences over the
usage of them and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. If the actual useful lives of them are less than the
original estimated useful lives due to changes in commercial
and technological environment, such difference will impact
the depreciation charge for the remaining useful life. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment was HK$224,270,000 (2015: HK$12,054,000).
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BE-_ZT—A"F+_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

6. REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold in respect of its commodity trading
business, natural gas sales business and services rendered

in establishing and providing secure electronic payment

processing platform and pipeline installation.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

6.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—~E —hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHET

Sales of goods HEEm
Trading of copper B =il 32,293 216,802
Sales of natural gas HERXAR 1,421 =
33,714 216,802

Rendering of services 12 B 7%
IT solution services BB R R AR 1,428 266
Pipeline installation services KR 1,237 -
2,665 266
Total revenue Rl g 36,379 217,068
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies conforming to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company, who are
identified as the chief operating decision makers (“CODM”) for
the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. The Group has three (2015: two) operating
and reportable segments including the natural gas operations,
which is a new operating and reporting segment in the current
period upon the completion of the Group’s acquisition of
Yichang Zhongyou on 24 February 2016.

° Trading of copper — including income from trading of
copper

° IT solution services - including services rendered in
establishing and providing secure electronic payment
processing platform and the services rendered in
establishing the mobile application platform for
customer’s design of garments

° Natural gas operations — including investment in natural
gas projects, sales of natural gas, natural gas cooking
appliance and accessories and pipeline installation
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 7EER#)
Segment revenues and results THEWERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AT REAHERKEE DHEEAREE K
results from continuing operations by reportable and operating BRELEXBENERRERELND
segment: #r
Trading IT solution  Natural gas
of copper services operations Consolidated
BEH BMAIRERB RAREW a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAEL BT FTHL
For the year ended BHE-Z-—1~%&
31 December 2016 +tZAZT—HLEFE
REVENUE U 3%
External and total revenue HOMEE B R 32,293 1,428 2,658 36,379
RESULTS ES |
Segment result ECES (104) (2,254) (13,316) (15,674)
Other income Hi A 35
General and administrative expenses  —#& R /7B (24,761)
Other gains and losses Hism RE#E (374)
Loss before taxation BRERIEE (40,774)
For the year ended Bz-_Z-1%
31 December 2015 TZA=T-BLEE
REVENUE U 3
External and total revenue HIMEE REK SR 216,802 266 N/AT@EMA 217,068
RESULTS £
Segment result GECEY 9) (2,229)  N/ATEHA (2,238)
Other income Hi A 74
Selling and distribution cost SHE R SERC AR (2,439)
General and administrative expenses  — & R 1T B (76,852)

Loss before taxation bR BB 18 (81,455)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 4. Segment loss represent the loss from
each segment without allocation of headquarter income and
expenses (including other income, general and administrative
expenses, selling and distribution cost and other gains and
losses). This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

Segment assets

THEER (#)
SEREREE ()

RERAMEDEZ G BERENES
PrfiAsEEe st BRAR - D B EE
BEOREEZER YARADREAIRBKA
b (BREEMBA —REITEX
o SHE R D SRR - B Woas M B 1R
NABBRA) < ik Ty B IR D B K /IR Y
BRAGREBRERREER 2L

THEERRAE

AT RZAIRERKEENTREAREE
ERBEELODH:

THEEE

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2016 2015
—E-RE T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH&T
Trading of copper B & il 3,184 97
IT solution services BT AR R T AR 8,162 9,396
Natural gas operations RARETS 447,985 N/A T iE
Total segment assets DB EBRE 459,331 9,493
Unallocated ROER
Deposit paid for acquisition of ENKEEERHIES
Yichang Zhongyou - 35,001
Bank balances and cash SRITHERNEIRE® 10,611 24,305
Other receivables JiE U L b BR X 2,420 1,551
Property, plant and equipment e 8,851 11,891
Intangible assets mEE 1,520 1,520
Consolidated assets HEBE 482,733 83,761
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. 2EER &)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHEEREBE (Z)
Segment liabilities THEEE
As at 31 December
W+=—A=+-—H
2016 2015
—E-XE —hf
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trading of copper EEifl 7 13
IT solution services BB R T KRR 225 262
Natural gas operations RARER 239,767 N/A T iE
Total segment liabilities DIEaERRE 239,999 275
Unallocated Ko BC
Other payables FERT B AL BR X 11,284 2,969
Amount due to a shareholder JERT AR R B R FRIA
of the Company 9,093 N/A T iE
Consolidated liabilities FeasE 260,376 3,244
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and BERDBRARRIBCHIEE
allocating resources between segments: IR

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
bank balances and cash, other receivables, property,
plant and equipment, and intangible assets used and held
by the headquarter; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than other payables and amount due to a shareholder of
the Company used by the headquarter.

MBEEOR I RERENE K
RITEHNRE  BUREMER
ME - WE MR KRR ER &
RBZEVEERIN: &

FIBEREOR S RERSE
#8358 P A F’éﬁﬁi\ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
R AR GRIARR D -

AR M
J& 5 A<



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BBHBiMEBARAT | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &£ 97

e B mERME ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. 7EER (&)
Other segment information HitnBER

Trading IT solution  Natural gas

of copper services  operations Unallocated Consolidated
BEH BMAFRRE RAREHR ROE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FHT TR TR
For the year ended BE-Z-~"F+ZA=1+—8
31 December 2016 EFE
Amounts included in the measure of ~ MAFENHERZE%H:
segment profit or loss:
Depreciation e - 56 3,556 2,180 5,792
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEESH - 1,800 6,490 - 8,290
Release of prepaid lease payments BRAEREE R - - 33 - 33
For the year ended BE-Z-nf¥+=-A=+—8
31 December 2015 EFE
Amounts included in the measure of ~ WA ENBERZEH:
segment profit or loss:
Depreciation e - - = 1,789 1,789
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESH - 300 - - 300
Geographical information i & & B
All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by location BRI SIEEEMTHE D 2R
of customers or by location of assets are within the People’s SEFBRERIERBEESDM N FE
Republic of China (the “PRC”), including Hong Kong and ARKEME ([HE]) BEFERR

Macau. Fo
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Bz

7.

The following table sets out the revenue from customers
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group during the
year.

—E-RNF+ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7. 7EER (#)
Information about major customers ERETEEFZ2ER

TREINFABEMAREAHETE10%
A EZ BRI Y-

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—RHLt=EE

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—h0fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Customer A ZPA 27,615 128,936
Customer B =FB 4,678 =
Customer C ®FC - 68,699
32,293 197,635
FINANCE COST 8. MHBHA
Year ended 31 December
BEZE+=-A=1+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF S 1,506 =
Interest on loan from FERBREREBEES
non-controlling shareholders RIEEE Zﬂm
and its related parties 7,794 -
9,300 -
Less: amounts capitalised in W ERIERER &5
construction in progress (9,261) -
39 -

The weighted average capitalisation rate was 9.72% for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BE-2-AE+-A=+—AILFE
2 R A A 59.72% »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE

9.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

—E-RNF+ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

9. FTEHER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-BA=+—HL&EE

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—0fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT

Current tax: RVEAR 1A
Hong Kong e 38 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REERST = -
38 =
Deferred tax credit (note 24): BT IEE 2 (Fi5E24) (1,623) -
(1,585) =

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. The tax rate of Hong Kong
Profits tax in respect of the HK subsidiaries is 16.5%

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016, since the PRC subsidiaries had no assessable
profits in the current year.

No provision for current Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
Enterprise Income Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015,
since the Company and its subsidiaries in both Hong Kong and
the PRC had no assessable profits in last year.

REFBECEAETE([REAER
E) REEMEGTOEERAR - B
BRI ER25% - FAEEMBEAR

AINEBN SR ER16.5% °
HRAFEHRHN B AR E BRI
BRI ERBEZE T —RF+=A

=t RLEFEZHEAMBHRERPIEL
TRERMAEHERS-

e 3 AN 28 ) R LA 75 T o B R o 0
B2 AR E (4 I 3 R B -
B EARE-F—RF+=A=+—
A2 G A B RE S (M ERED
5978 PG B R P B 0 R FAS BUR  -

99



100

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE M EE B R A 7 |

IWT\

BB RRMET

ll‘/ =

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

9.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continueq)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the
loss per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

BE-_ZT—A"F+_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

9. FIBHER &)

REFZFAEVERREHNEAERRER
Htt2miasR 2 BEEKRMNT

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-—A=+—HBL=EE

2016 2015
—E-XE —HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss before tax B T A ES 18 (40,774) (81,455)
Tax credit at PRC Enterprise Income };Zq: Bl (b E PTG E25%
Tax rate of 25% (2015: Hong Kong T—hF:
Profits Tax rate of 16.5%) (Note) %‘ MIFTHE16.5% )
AAEBIEER () (10,194) (18,440)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ] IR FETE 2 H 2 A5 52 22
for tax purposes 450 2,508
Tax effect of income not taxable R AZ TG E
for tax purposes (42) (13)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KR IEEIE 2 Mg T & 7,618 11,648
Effect of different tax rates of RE M B AR R A &
subsidiaries operating MEBARZ T TRABRE &
in other jurisdictions (29) (210)
Others Hith 612 (493)
Income tax credit for the year AKEEZHEHRER (1,585) =

Note: The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate used for tax reconciliation

GEE

purpose in 2016 has been changed to 25% as after the

acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou in February 2016,

it is the

domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of the

Group is substantially based.

RZZE-R"FARREASNHBEE
%Fﬁ?%w)%ﬁa“ﬁﬁ%% A AR
—E-AE-_AKEEETHE H
BAEEEER @Fmﬁ?/ﬂ&&ml
A= o
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR

10. FREE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
— NI —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Loss for the year has been arrived at  F A EE D &%
after charging:
Depreciation of property, ME BEREETE
plant and equipment
- included in general and —FA—REITHRZ
administrative expenses 2,800 1,789
- included in selling and —FTAHERDEXAE
distribution cost 2,992 -
5,792 1,789
Amortisation of intangible assets mEESRH
(included in selling and (Gt ASBE R IEA)
distribution cost) 8,290 300
Release of prepaid lease payments T8 1+ 0 & 3} 78 [0
(included in general and (GFA—MRITEZE)
administrative expense) 33 =
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREHBEE 14,115 2,089
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BE-_ZT—A"F+_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

10. FREE (2)

Year ended 31 December

BE+-BA=+—BLEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHET
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) FEME (HFE11) 7,395 41,607
Salaries, allowance and other benefits T & - ¥ & K H &7
(including directors) (PIEES)
- Included in general and AR RITE S H
administrative expenses 12,081 47,357
- Included in research expenditures ~ —&F ARFFESZ - 422
Contribution to retirement benefit RKE N ETEI 50
(including directors’) schemes (BIEES)
- Included in general and —FA—REITERZ
administrative expenses 86 139
— Included in research expenditures ~ — st AFIZE - 14
12,167 47,932
Auditor’s remuneration %S AN B & 971 724
Minimum lease payments THEME 2 REMEMNK
in respect of rented premises 3,867 4,344
Cost of inventories recognised WRRBAXZFEEKR
as an expense 33,295 216,678
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME BERKEEE
plant and equipment (included (G AH A Wz 2 18 )
in other gains and losses) 374 =
Research and development 2 7
expenditure (including staff cost (BREEEXNEZET
of nil (2015: HK$436,000)) —ET-AF:
(included in general 436,000/ 7T) )
and administrative expenses) (FFA—MRITHXZH) 8 459
and after crediting: FBEFA:
Interest income FEHA 4 39
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HE-_Z—R"FT_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11. EE - THEBREEMS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
During the year, included in staff costs of HK$12,167,000 FR-EEKA12,167,0008 T (= F
(2015: HK$47,932,000), emoluments paid to Directors were — R4 147,932,000 ) R E N E
amounted to HK$7,395,000 (2015: HK$41,607,000), details of =R £7,395,0008 L (ZE— R F:
which are set out below: 41,607,000/ 7T)  FEIEH R T
Directors’ emoluments EEME
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XF+ZA=1+—HLEE

Name of executive directors (Note d) ~ HTEEHL (MzEd)

Weng Lin Lei (“Mr. Weng’) SR% ([§EE])
Leung Tsz Man (Note c) 23 (MizEc)

Wei Yue Tong (Note b) BAE (M)

Fan Wei Guo (Note b) SBEE (M)
Zheng Jian Peng (Note b) Efhg (Fistn)

Name of non-executive directors FHMTESHE (HiTe)

(Note e)

Zheng Zhu Ping (Note b) BRF (Hizb)

Name of independent non-executive By FMITES A (KiFf)
directors (Note f)

Chiu Wai Piu (Note b) FEE (f5Eb)
Leung Oh Man, Martin 2HEX
Kwan Sin Yee HER
Sun Zhi Jun BEE

Huang Yu Jun XA
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BE_T—

NE+ZA=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2016

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 1. EE - THRARREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead) (&)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) BEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2015 BHE_ZT-—HF+T-_A=1T—HLFE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
ek BB RIREH
we Hit iz M izl b HEET ZEMesE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TET THET FTET TR
(Note a)
(Ktita)
Name of executive directors (Note d) ~ HITEEHL (MEd)
Wei Yue Tong RAE - 3,800 10,000 - 13,800
Weng Lin Lei SRS - 1,250 5,000 - 6,250
Fan Wei Guo BER - 1,250 5,000 - 6,250
Zheng Jian Peng Eh e - 2,030 5,000 18 7,048
Leung Tsz Man (Note c) 27X (HzEc) - 469 - 6 475
Name of non-executive director ERITESHS (Hie)
(Note e)
Zheng Zhu Ping BT 600 650 5,000 18 6,268
Name of independent non-executive B FEITES A (KiFEf)
directors (Note f)
Chiu Wai Piu REE 120 = 360 - 480
Leung Oh Man, Martin 2HEX 120 = 360 - 480
Kwan Sin Yee Fa %5% 120 - 360 - 480
Sun ZhiJun (Notec) — && E (MtzEc) 38 - - = 38
Huang Yu Jun (Note c) ﬁiiﬁ (HisEc) 38 - - - 38
1,036 9,449 31,080 42 41,607
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (cContinued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The performance related incentive payments are discretionary
based on the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics and decided by the board of
directors.

Mr. Wei Yue Tong, Mr. Fan Wei Guo, Mr. Zheng Jian Peng and
Mr. Zheng Zhu Ping were resigned on 3 June 2016, while Mr.
Chiu Wai Piu resigned on 16 June 2016.

Ms. Leung Tsz Man, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun and Ms. Huang Yu Jun were
appointed on 24 August 2015.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’'s emoluments shown above were for

the services as director of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included five directors (2015: five directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out above.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or the

five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None

of the directors have waived any emoluments during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &R

1. BEE - THHEBZREEMS

(%)

BEEME (F)

Mo :

(a) RIFERBEHZRSHEESRE
REFZKEEEE BAARRETAL
BHSRTBIENBET -

() HMBAESRLE SEBELE BEKEE
REBRFRER-_Z-RFRA=R
BHE MESREER T RFRA
TREBE-

© RFIXL FEEEXREREFFELRL
RZZE-—HFENAZTHBEZRE-

d ALFBERTEEZHSDEEHY
REHARBRAKEELEHIRM
ZBR7 -

() ALMEERTEEZHFEDEES
HEFERARALEWNBRARES
ZBR7 -

) ALHEBIUFATEEZHFENT
EHHREERARREETZRS -

EEREHAL

AEERFANIEAR=FEERER
2EF (T —HF AREZR) KF
ZHEFBIN L3

REBEEZZT—AREERZFT—HE+=
A=+—HALLFE AEEBERES
FAEmE T A TS EAMA
N5 B 5k o0 A AN £ B B 2 3R B Bk B s
HE-RBEZZ—XRFRZZT—AHF
+ZA=t+—BHLFE ESHREKRE
FERBE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BH=E

12.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows:

—E-RNF+ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

12. BREE

AR RGN (TR A R B TR 1
W B a5

BEBIEAHEIT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
— N —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Loss for the year attributable to METEERELEIE 2
owners of the Company for $ NEwEE AE
the purpose of basic loss per share R4 E E51E (33,224) (81,455)
’000 ‘000
T F &
Weighted average number of M EBRERNEBEZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of TR ke R
basic loss per share 5,377,131 3,930,411

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as

there were no potential ordinary shares in issue throughout all

years presented.

BRESERESREANEERMER
RRAAE2FEYL EE EE%E?TTE

P o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

T—XNF+-A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &R

13. E -BERRKRE

Computer Furniture
system and and  Leasehold Motor Pipeline and Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles  equipment in progress Total
EHARR
gF ®E GAR%EE HERE RE  EERRME ERIE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAL TET TR TR TR T TR
cosT RA
At 1 January 2015 RZE-H4%-A-H - 1,087 115 720 807 - - 2,729
Additions HE 3,302 328 190 1,999 6,220 - - 12,039
Disposals HE - (762) 8) - - - - (770)
Exchange realignment ERAZ (79) - - (44) - - - (123)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-REF-A=1-8 3,223 653 297 2,675 7,027 - - 13,875
Acquired on acquisition of WEE S mEEA (F29)

Yichang Zhongyou (note 29) 6,184 880 - 603 58,492 62,482 128,641
Additions "E S 166 111 51 = 710 99,412 100,450
Transfers EH - - - - - 2,100 (2,100) =
Disposals HE - 6] 87) (518) (320) - - (928)
Exchange realignment ERAZ (547) ) (63) (1493) (68) (3,079) (6,797) (10,696)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AF+ZA=1-H 8,860 811 1,138 2,065 7,242 58,229 152,997 231,342
DEPRECIATION ik 3
At 1 January 2015 R-E-R%-f-A = 768 10 12 13 = = 803
Provided for the year FREE 68 13 3% 271 1,302 - s 1,789
Eliminated on disposals HE R - (762) ® = = = - (770)
Exchange realignment ERHE (1) - - - - - - 1)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-AF+-A=1-H 67 119 37 283 1,315 - - 1,821
Provided for the year FREE 314 152 203 466 1,665 2,992 - 5,792
Eliminated on disposals &R 5 - 0] (26) (155) (17) = = (299)
Exchange realignment ERAZ (19) (1) (13) (24) (48) (137) - (242)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-~E+ZA=1+-8H 362 269 201 570 2,815 2,855 - 7,072
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 RZB-~"¥+-A=Z1+-8H 8,498 542 937 1,495 4,421 55,374 152,997 224,270
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+ZA=1+-8H 3,156 534 260 2,392 5,712 - - 12,054
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_ZT—A"F+_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the following estimated useful lives after taking into
account the residual values:

2.3% - 19%
20% - 33"/5%
9.5% — 33"/3%
Leasehold improvements 20%

20% - 23.8%
4.8% — 9.5%

Buildings
Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles
Pipeline and equipment

14. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

13. ¥ -BERRE #)

UEWE BERRERE KRERT
RO IR MR EER N NMEE
AERFHRRERENE:

BT
EMRGRRRE
RRRER
AEEE

e
EERAR

14. AHHEHERE

2.3% - 19%
20% — 33'/5%
9.5% — 33"/5%
20%

20% - 23.8%
4.8% - 9.5%

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—0fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  ARE BN MOTOT

Current — assets mE) — B E 33 =
Non-current — assets ERB—BE 1,678 =

1,711
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BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

15. GOODWILL 15. @&
HK$’000
TAETT
COST RRA
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 RZE—HAF—H—HK
—E-HEFT-A=t-H -
Arising on acquisition of WHEE &Pl EE (ME29)

Yichang Zhongyou (note 29) 4,556
Exchange realignment M 5, 8 B (228)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H 4,328
CARRYING VALUE BRIEIE
At 31 December 2016 R_E-—RF+A=+—H 4,328
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE-—AF+—A=+—H -
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are A BT ERE A AR FE R 17 R

disclosed in note 17. 7% o
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Natural
Cost of gas supply
mobile exclusive
Car license application rights Total
TENFE R RRR
Hig BRARE  BRHEER st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiET THET FTET FTET
COST 7%
At 1 January 2015 —a%¥—-F—H - - - -
Acquired on acquisition of W EE R B A R BB A

a subsidiary - 9,000 - 9,000
Transfer EE 1,520 = = 1,520
At 31 December 2015 —AE+t-RA=1+—8 1,520 9,000 = 10,520
Acquired on acquisition of Wi E B A (F1529)

Yichang Zhongyou (note 29) B S 236,400 236,400
Exchange realignment B i 72 - = (11,820) (11,820)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"F+=-A=1+—H 1,520 9,000 224,580 235,100
AMORTISATION By
At 1 January 2015 R-E-—1%—f—H - - - -
Charge for the year FAME - 300 - 300
At 31 December 2015 —AE+=-fA=1+—8 = 300 = 300
Charge for the year FANEK - 1,800 6,490 8,290
Exchange realignment R - (252) (252)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-—R"F+-A=+—H = 2,100 6,238 8,338
CARRYING VALUE SREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-—~"&+-B=+—H 1,520 6,900 218,342 226,762
At 31 December 2015 R-E-—RF+-A=+—H 1,520 8,700 = 10,220
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The amount of car license, representing the China/Hong Kong
cross border car license acquired from an independent third
party in 2015, was transferred from deposit for acquisitions
placed in 2014. The Directors are of the opinion that the car
license has an indefinite useful life as the car license is subjected
to annual renewal and hence no amortisation is provided. At the
end of the reporting period, the car license is carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The mobile application represents the web-based and mobile
application platform for customer’s design of garments as
acquired through acquisition of a subsidiary, namely Logo
Plus Limited, of which was accounting for as acquisition of a
subsidiary not constituting a business in November 2015. The
mobile application has finite useful life and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 5 years.

The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from the Group’s
acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou completed on 24 February
2016 and is amortised over the remaining years of the
contractual period of 30 years till the years ranging from 2041 to
2044,

16.

BELEE &)

B &L -

(a)

B (ER_E-0aFmBIE=FK
BrhEBRER) 2B -~ @
FEEZEBREBR -EERR
%E%ﬁ%i%%*ﬁ?ﬁ%i%%ﬁ
PR B I ST hR B 3 - MRS BT AR
i BRR TR AR T IR RETRE

185 -

mEEARRER-_ZE—AF+— A
#iBULEE — % Blogo Plus Limited
ZHBARMBARAREFRTRE
ZHERREERTE  BRBEEA
BRDIVEIREE — RO B AR (W IERER—
HER) - RBEAEXNEFHRAE
BEBRYAEG AR A FEY-

RARBRHUEEELENAEER
E-RE_ATHATKREBE
R TREE-TN—FE TEIE]
FIEB0F 2 FIA A K BN EE 84 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT

17.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in
note 15 has been allocated to one individual cash generating
unit (CGU), i.e. the subsidiary Yichang Zhongyou. The carrying
amount of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses) as
at 31 December 2016 allocated to the unit are as follows:

—RNFE+ZA=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

17. BERENR

SBERAM S ME1sMEmED D
EE—EAE-ReELEML BHBER
AEER M DEEREMZEHER
T-ARFEt-A=1+—HB&EkEE (H
BRRFRERSE) T

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—8
2016 2015
ZE-KRF —ET—0fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FETT
Yichang Zhongyou-natural gas HEFRH-RARER
operations 4,328 -

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of
14.23%. Yichang Zhongyou’s cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry in which Yichang Zhongyou operates. Other
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on Yichang
Zhongyou'’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that 2%
decrease in net profit margin and 1% increase in discount rate
would be the reasonably possible change in respect of the
sensitivity analysis of the value-in-use calculation of the CGU.
Where net profit margin decreased by 2% in the cash flow
projection, impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets
would be HK$4,328,000 and HK$3,900,000, respectively.
Where the discount rate increased by 1%, no impairment loss
would be recognised on goodwill and intangible assets.

ZEBEMAMAKESEIRFERAEBRTE
E/ﬁféﬂi"gxﬁ' E/f?ﬁ(ﬁﬁgﬁ/\\gfi
HENTFHRMRBEEEENREeRE
TERI K14.283%MITHRE - HEF RN T
FHENRESRENRASKHNIEE
REHRAG ZEREDEREBAT
EEETEA WA BBESPHEEM
FRBTENFHRAER -FHE
Bt E A AFEAMNEMERER SR
Eﬁ%/}lb)\///lbﬁ (@}Efg\#iﬁ%%ﬁ&%
FE)W MG ZMEETDEREEHH
HATREREEEYMISERNTEL
mELH -EREEE RZREELE
UERAEEAENRRESINTMS 45
FETH2BRITEER EA 1% RE 1R
AR E IR MEBTEAP LR ET
Po% R B RETLEERBEBERD
71l 7%4,328,0007% 7T 3,900,000 JT °
WITIRE EA1% AT enmERER
BE®RRBEES-
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18. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF

YINCHANG ZHONGYOU

On 23 April 2015, the Company entered into the Equity
Transfer Agreement with Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”),
the ultimate controlling shareholder of Yichang Zhongyou, an
independent third party in relation to the major acquisition
of 49% of the equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou at the
consideration of HK$100,000,000. Upon completion, Yichang
Zhongyou would be regarded as being controlled by the
Group in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies
and Yichang Zhongyou will become a 49% indirectly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The business scope of Yichang
Zhongyou includes investment in natural gas project, sales of
natural gas cooking appliance and accessories and pipeline
installation.

As at 31 December 2015, the deposit was paid as the first
instalment this acquisition of amount HK$35,001,000. The
deposit was refundable if certain conditions as stated in the
Equity Transfer Agreement had not been fulfilled, including
the acquisition of natural gas operation permit. The Directors
considered the deposit as non-current asset as the acquisition
of a subsidiary was a long term investment.

During the year, the acquisition had been completed and the
related deposit was used to settle part of the consideration of
the acquisition on date of acquisition (Further details are set out
in note 29).

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

18. ENFWIBEER HIEE

RZE—RAENA-+=H ARQAH
HEFHRZEKRERRKRRRERSEE
([RR%EE]) (BYE=ZF)FBUARE
100,000,000/ 7t Y #8 & & F H49% %
B ETEWEEHE IREEERE -
RPTERE HEFBBIRBRAEE
R HERERIERASEES - MEE
FOREK AR AT HEEE49%ERD
MEBAR -BEEHH EKEERIER
BEXARIEBE HEAARERRARAAR
EHAREBLR-

RZZE—AF+—A=+—8 &~KE
FIEM XN 2% —H&Z< /35,001,000
AT o AR S IR R ATl 2 B T4
(BRERBRARCETAIE) TaEE
B REBAFARE - EERA AR
WHEHB AR ARBRE e RIE
MENEE

FA-ZWESHEEETK MAERR
TEHEARRKEE BBy WER
B (- FrBENME29)

19. BWE 5 K H fth ik X

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—0fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Trade receivables JE W E 5 AR X 78 11
Other receivables JiE U b BR 3Kk 3,649 1,606

3,727 1,617
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits for
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually.
In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivables since the credit was granted and up to the
reporting date.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to
180 days for its IT solution business. For trading of coppert,
deposits are usually required and the remaining balance
is usually receivable approximately within 10 days upon
completion of the transaction. The Group recognises revenue
for natural gas pipeline installation service by reference to the
stage of completion and the Group allows an average credit
period of 30 days upon completion.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date which approximate the
revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period:

19.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%

FEWE SR RS (2)

REMERHELH AEEGFEE
EXEPHEEERIAEETFPNEERR
BM-ETEPHRESEF T AR
AT TE FE B 5 BR B E AT IR [ 1 By - R
SEEEREERRLNKREERER
HERWE SRR EEERNEAE-

AEBREEAMBRBRIREBRET
T FI0BE180R 2 FHEEH -HE
BRME BERATEERS HEB
FRRXZERENTBAUE - KAEE
RIBESTRER /SRARE B L KRS E
AU BEASEAFRTKEBI0H
FHEEBR-

RBEMTERHREZFRZAY (B
BRAMRE) 202 BEE S ERF K

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
0 - 60 days 0-60H 78 11

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with
reference to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and
sales management team considers trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as
continuous repayments have been received.

EERAEMHEP A NEE M5 K H
EEEBBeTBEETPZEERE
R WEEREFPZERER -BPZER
HEe2TZRENRCEMERETE
Bl-ANEEMBRHEEEERERS
B RE FE B W BUE 5K ST A BE R
NRBEZEREEZERRGARTFEES
FCEE
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20.

21.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances carried prevailing market interest at an
average rate of 0.035% (2015: 0.26%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E-RF+ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

20. RITHEBRRES

RITERIBIRITMBEENER 2 LR =
0.035B (—ZE—FRF:0206F )5t B~

21. BENEZREMERR

As at 31 December

R+=—HB=+—8
2016 2015
—"EF —T—AHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
Trade payables BB S RM 284 77
Payable for construction in progress £ & T2 FE{f BR 7% 19,177 =
Consideration payable (note 29) FERTRAE (M7E29) 9,999 =
Receipt in advance AW RIA 591 =

Other payables and accruals (Note) FEH H th BR X R FE AT B A

(H3E) 6,614 3,167
36,665 3,244

Note: The amount represented mainly by accrued charges and
temporary short-term advances of RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,850,000) for Yichang Zhongyou's development from an
independent third party, which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group ranged
from 30 to 60 days. The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

MieE: ZRAETERETEAR—RBBILSE
ZHAREAREERHZERNER
B 52 B 8 3 A R #62,500,0007T (48
E 72,850,000 70) + E AEIEA -
BB NBREREE-

HERR TASENEEHN F30£60

BeTHRARBENTERREERA
HIZJIM RN E SRR RE D

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—8
2016 2015
—NE —ZT—AfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THETT
1 to 30 days 1,5 30H 284 77
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22,

23.

BANK BORROWINGS

During the year, the Group assumed bank borrowings of
RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to HK$21,600,000) as a result of
its acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou completed on 24 February
2016. The bank borrowings carry interest at certain basis
points plus the rate of People’s Bank of China, with an effective
interest rate of 8.48% per annum. RMB3,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,480,000) of which has been repaid in November 2016
while the remaining balance of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$17,100,000) will be repayable in November 2017 and was
classified as current liabilities, accordingly.

The bank borrowings are guaranteed and pledged with
several properties owned by Mr. Xiong, his spouse and certain
companies held and controlled by him.

AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF
THE COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES

Amount due to a shareholder of the Company

22,

23.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%

RITEE

FR AEEERAR=-_ZT—X<XF_A
T+ HZERKER S B oH A ER
715 E AR ¥18,000,0007T (HHE ®
21,600,000/ 7T) - Z S RTEEIR
AETERMNMPEARRBRITAMZFE
AR CERAMERASEGFL48E-HP A
R #3,000,0007T (18 & 73,480,000
BELERZZE—XR"E+—AEE"
mer % A R #15,000,0007T (HHE ®
17,100,000/ L) SR —ZFE —EF +—
AEZE THARESEARBAE:

BRI E R ERTEENSHYE -
HEBAREFHAE RIS ET AT
IEIRIR AR -
ENAAGRRRE—EHEA
A ZFERBRRREBEL K
5

B 1 5 2% B B R 3K OR

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—H
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Non-trade related IEE F I 9,093 =
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23. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF 23.

THE COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Amount due to a shareholder of the Company (Continued)

Non-trade related balances

Particulars of the amount due to a shareholder of the Company
of which are non-trade related are as follows.

BNEAQBARRE—EHEQ
B ZFERBRRREBEL
H (4)

AN T RRIE (4)

HEGHEE G

ENARRBRRZIFEHRBHRIBFE
e

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—H
Name Relationship 2016 2015
%A 1% —E-RE —ZT—0fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAETT
Mr. Weng Note
HEHE Bt 5E 9,093 -

Note: Mr. Weng is the chairman, executive director and a substantial
shareholder under the definition of Listing Rules.

During the year, Mr. Weng advances HK$11,000,000 to the
Group, and such amount was unsecured, interest-free and
with a maturity period of 2 years. The balance is carried at
amortised cost using effective interest method, with an effective
interest rate of 10%. The proceeds raised during the current
year were used for the Group’s general working purpose.

i BEEAXAREE ROTEERE

ERR(EZR LRI -

FA 54 MmN & B #3511,000,000
BT BEAREAEER 2EER
MERE B - AR A BRI )RR #
SHPR AN B BR - BRR A K B10E - RARF
BEESNAMBHRBARAEEN—RKE
FE=N:
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(i) Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian, a non-

controlling interest of Yichang Zhongyou.

23. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF 23. ENEALQRIRRE—EHREQ
THE COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING RAIZHFERBRRREBER N
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND 5 (&)

ITS RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a B—BEHEARZIFERBRRREE
subsidiary and its related parties BEARE
As at 31 December
BR+=A=+-—H
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—0fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Non-trade related IEE SHEE 142,933 =
Non-trade related balances E3-E¥ ) kg3
Particulars of the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FERT — MM B A Rz FEE AR AR 3R K L8
of a subsidiary and its related parties of which are non-trade BHZIESHBHEFBOT -
related are as follows.
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
Name Relationship 2016 2015
=g B % —E—-XRF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 TERT FAT
Hubei Biaodian (as defined in note 35) and its
subsidiary (i
WAL (& RHTEE35) REME R F) 118,490 -
Mr. Xiong and his controlled entities
other than those in (i) (i)
AR R E BB (()F P& RN 24,443 -
142,933 -
Notes: B o
()  Hubei Biaodian is one of the non-controlling interests of Yichang () HERAEEERBZIEERER
Zahongyou who has 41% entity interest in Yichang Zhongyou. — HEBHEER B BRKE-

(i) RRELERMILIRA Z AR - Tt
RESE S ol FFE A -
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23. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF 23. ERNAQATRRE —BEHEA

THE COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary and its related parties (Continued)

Non-trade related balances (Continued)

Prior to 31 December 2016, all advances from non-controlling
shareholders and its related parties were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand, except for RMB65,000,000
(equivalent to HK$78,000,000) advanced from Hubei Biaodian
which carried interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum.

On 31 December 2016, taking into consideration of the
development status of Yichang Zhongyou, Hubei Biaodian
agreed to stop charging the Group interest since then, while
all non-controlling shareholders and its related parties agreed
to fix the loan repayment date to 31 December 2018. These
balances were then carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with an effective interest rate of 10%.

The proceeds raised from non-controlling shareholders during
the current year were used for Yichang Zhongyou's capital
expenditure purpose.

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

A ZFERBRREEBERL K
8 (#)

e — R E AR ZFERRRREE
BHRE(#E)

FEZHBEE (F)

W_ZE—XNE+-_A=+—B#
RERRREBESRBEZABRRE A
mIER 2B RAREREER R
JbiZ B IR (2 #3 A K #565,000,0007T
(#8E 178,000,000/ 7T ) 1% E & 7| K5
F12EF B RIBRIN o

RZZE—AR"F+ZA=+—H &k
HEFRHBZERMKR HILIZHREER
HEFRE EMAEBBRFE  MAE
EERBRRREBAERHREBERE
EOSREETA-—TE—N\F+_A=1+—
He-ZEEBRILBRAERMNE X RS
SHAKARFIER - BRI EB10E -

RAFERIFERBREE Z TR
TREEERMZEARST -

24. EERH A

As at 31 December

W+=—A=+-—H
2016 2015
— —F-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHET
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 54,585 -
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and

movements thereon during the current year:

24, IEHERIE (2)

T ARAFERRZMELEHES &R
IR

Revaluation of

assets
BEEM
HK$’000
FHET

At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 RZE—HAF—H—HBRK
—hE+=-ZA=+—H -
Acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou (note 29) Ik BgE E om (FisE29) 59,100
Credit to profit or loss FFAE &= (1,623)
Exchange realignment bE 5, #E (2,892)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—-—RF+ZHA=+—H 54,585

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$137,166,000 (2015:
HK$104,508,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

These tax losses of HK$128,382,000 (2015: HK$104,508,000)
in HK may be carried forward indefinitely and tax losses in the
PRC of HK$8,784,000 (2015: nil) may be carried forward within

5 years.

The unrecognised tax losses which are not recognised as
deferred tax assets will expire in the following years:

RS HTER  AEBERSH ZHE
BB %) 5137,166,0008 L (T —H
104,508,000/ 7T ) + 7] 4 4K £ 5K 2R
i ) o B B S B TBURI R 2R 2 i B R

M EREREERIBEE -

It 55 &8 B E B 18128,382,000/8 7T
(—Z — A% :104,508,0005% 7T ) 7] &
PR AR 45 88 - M b B 5 1E 588,784,000
T(ZE—RF - E)AIREFREE-

AR RIRTETHIAE E 2 RFER A
BRNRATFEER:

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8H
2016
ZE-KRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR

2015
—hE

2018
2019
2020
2021

AL
—jL¢
—E2F

— T —%F

(574) -
(1,190) -

(433) -
(6,587) -

(8,784) -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. R

Number of shares Share capital

R E A [

2016 2015 2016 2015

—E-RE —T-A1F —E-xE —E-hF

’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Tk T THET FTET

Authorised: EIE
16,000,000,000 ordinary shares of ~ 16,000,000,000% & & E &

HK$0.005 each 0.005% L 2 L ik 16,000,000 16,000,000 80,000 80,000

Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR

At beginning of year REA 3,960,000 180,000 19,800 18,000
Share subdivision (Note a) R4 (Hiska) - 3,420,000 -

Issue of ordinary shares (Note b) BT EBR (Mab) 1,695,000 360,000 8,475 1,800
At end of year FR 5,655,000 3,960,000 28,275 19,800

Notes: B 5 -

(a) Pursuant to a resolution passed at an extra ordinary general () WEBREARAE-ZT—RF—HANA
meeting of the Company held on 9 January 2015, the ordinary BITZRERFRAS LRBZRFER
shares of the Company of HK$0.1 each were subdivided into 20 ARBFROABIT 2 EBERIFHAR20
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each. % & §%0.0057% T 2 B

(b) During the year, an aggregate of 1,695,000,000 (2015: by FA-ARQAAH1,695,000,0008%

360,000,000) ordinary shares of the Company have been placed
to independent third parties at the placing price of HK$0.035
(2015: HK$0.354) per each placing share. The placing shares
shall rank pari passu in all respects among themselves and with
the existing issued shares. The net proceeds from the placing
were mainly used to settle the consideration for the Group’s
acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou completed on 24 February
2016 (2015: fund a possible acquisition of natural gas project in
the PRC, the Group’s trading of copper business and general
working capital).

(== — F 4 : 30,000,0000% ) & @ %

BEREETEYE=S EEEATRAE
ER170.0358 T (ZF— R :0.354
BIL) cRERNERERE DT
BNREFEZEEREHN - BEFE
REFEETZEARIAAEER=Z
—ANE_A-tTHNHERKEES

HMZRE(ZE—RHFE: BATERTE
KWERAREE RASEEERER
REESULBE—REEELS) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to
attract and to retain quality personnel and other persons and to
provide them with incentive to contribute to the business and
operation of the Group. Under the Scheme, the directors may
grant options to any eligible persons of the Group, including
(i) any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii)
a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv)
any person or entity whose service to the Group or business
with the Group contribute or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Options granted are exercisable for a period of up to
ten years from the date of grant of the option as decided by the
board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of share; (i) the closing price per share as
stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
grant of the option, which must be a business day and (i) the
average closing price per share as stated in the Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which the options may be granted under the
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period from time to time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No
option under the Scheme has been granted by the Company
since its adoption.

BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

26. B RESTE

RZZE—ZF+—HA=TH ARAK
M—EERERE (T5HE]) - 5TE8l 2
EMTRRARBEEFABREMA
TOENSERERNERE EBRE
BEEHER -REFE EFMAE
B2EMEEBATELBRE 5
BREOEAAF B ARISEEALTH
FAESE - BEXERM: k(iyExra K
BARKHBALNEMNES EEK
B RE2EEEHRNEMN2ERET:
g (i) A A A~ B A A s B A AT
MEEF EESBEHNERERANAT
Ei(iv)§$$ﬁ%m\ﬁwu\ﬁﬁi%$ﬁlk1
R EEAEEET IS E LK
HEHARERE BN EEBMAERDY
EAATHER BFRERBARAAAZ
R -MBRE 2 BREATRESTSHE
EZHE (HERERLAHRITRS
TE) RITE -

R8N Z A TT(E(E (R RET &l
FTBAT LAGREE) R()B D EE ¢ ()RR
BELBEH (BAREER)ERSGME
B {8 2% P i 2 B O TR B K (i) R
HERERMAAEEXRAERSME
BREXRMKRzBRENFHERTE
N=FBZ&SERE REAETRD
ZEBHER S k2B ID 8B ERTSE
BARBNFEIERRZ D EHITRA
10% ° PR 1 - BRI AT (T B R 1T RS i A
A F 1T 2 it B8 ERAIN S
RRABTE D EITRAZ30% - ERLE
ARRRRELGET  REM12(EA
,HHF'EEJWﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ—%ﬁé/\?ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ
Bz BN BB NMEEERNARRZI
&8 B BAfE A A 1% — ET%E?‘ETTJ&%%&
B Z1% ° A7) BB BI LA RAR
RET B R
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26.

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 31 December 2016, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Scheme adopted by
the Company on 30 November 2012 is 300,000,000 shares
of HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company,
representing approximately 5.31% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors,
there is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised. There
is no consideration for the application or acceptance of an
option under the Scheme. The remaining life of the Scheme
is approximately six years and to be expired on 30 November
2022.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

26. BIRRESTE (&)

A\ZE /—\EJr A=+—8 #R&xX
—Z—F+—A=+THEH
B2 ARRARGDBEA
PiN/NE]! XAKEPSOO 000,000/% & f%0.005
BLZBRMD EARBE FEITRAL
531% BRIFEFZITEIAIN 5T EIL
EHRTERENATTENAERE &R
B - IRIBFT B R A S N EREEE
RE-FBZHTHMOBT HR
—EZZF+—HA=+tRHEm"

2

27. JEERER

Share of
net assets of
Yichang
Zhongyou
PIEEEF
EEFE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-—RF—HA—H -
Non-controlling interests arising W B BT B 1 A AR Y FE R R i
on acquisition of a subsidiary 99,340
Share of loss for the year Db FANEE (5,965)
Exchange difference PE H =% (4,694)
Deemed capital contribution arising from EZERBRRREBERRHE
non-current interest free loan JERNER G B ERELEMRIELE
from non-controlling shareholders
and its related parties 15,304
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-—RF+ZA=+—H 103,985
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27. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuead)

The table below shows details of the non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling

27. FEERER (&)

TRIVNEEERFZERER 2 AKE
FEEMBRAFE:

interests:
Proportion of
ownership interests and
voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interests non-controlling interest non-controlling interests
FEREEFEETRERR
REEZLA AERFFERERZER R FERES
Principal place
Name of Subsidiary  of business As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
WELAREME TEEENY R+=ZRE=+-H HE+-A=+-BLEFE Rt=A=+-H
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE —T-1F “E-XE “T-%F ZE-RE —Z-h%
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER
(Note)
(Hi)
Yichang Zhongyou The PRC
i FE 51% - (5,965) = 103,985 S
Note: The Directors concluded that the Group has a sufficiently Wit: EFREAEBHRERDETENE

dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of
Yichang Zhongyou and therefore the Group has control over
Yichang Zhongyou. Details of assessment are set out in note
358

SERIEEES
It NERE ARSI E S

BN HIFES5 ©

e REED - B
o B {5
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27. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 27. FEERER (&)

Summarised financial information in respect of Yichang EHEEPHUBER ZBMEBEHRT
Zhongyou is set out below. The summarised financial Mo ATHBEMBEREBRNIT A
information below represents amounts before intragroup MKERI 2 &8
eliminations.
Yichang Zhongyou HEEYH
As at
31 December
2016
R-ZT—RF
+t=A=+-A
HK$’000
THER
Current assets MBNEE 8,480
Non-current assets EMBEE 435,177
Current liabilities ik R=NE 42,008
Non-current liabilities FRBAE 197,759
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RAGEE AEEER 99,905

Non-controlling interests FE2 A A o 103,985
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—E-RF+ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

27. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continuec) ~ 27. FFIERER ()
Yichang Zhongyou (Continued) (&)
From
acquisition
date to
year ended
31 December
2016
BEWEBRHER
BE-Z—XF
+t=ZA=+—8H
IEFE
HK$’000
FHE T
Revenue W& 2,658
Cost of sales Ei=k=—07 %N (2,168)
Expenses (553 (13,8086)
Income tax credit FrigHiig % 1,623
Loss for the year FREE (11,693)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RAEHE AELEE (5,728)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling interests FE1E A HE 25 JE A RS 1B (5,965)
(11,693)
Other comprehensive expense arising LTATERERERZESEK
from translation to presentation FTEEZHEMEEZ L :
currency attributable to
— owners of the Company . N/NEIE ¥ =N (4,611)
- non-controlling interests —JEIERER (4,694)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FRAHMEEZ M (9,205)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to AARHEABGEEZE HEHE
owners of the Company (10,239)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to R EEEEEA S LA
the non-controlling interests (10,659)
Total comprehensive expense attributable FARGEEES HEHE
for the year (20,898)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBEEARRAFRE 7,758
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEHELERS ML F5E (90,966)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEHELER S RAFRE 83,454
Net cash inflow BEMAER 246
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28.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Employees employed by the Group’s operations in Macau are
members of government-managed retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Macau operations are
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau government is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

The Group enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a
mandatory provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement
benefit cost for the MPF scheme charged to profit or loss
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the vyear, retirement benefits scheme contributions
paid amounted to approximately HK$86,000 (year ended 31
December 2015: HK$153,000).

28. R k18 X5t &

AEENRPIREZERBRBEFRER
RFIBT 22 HF 2 BRI & AR R AR A 5t 8
Z B - RPIETFAIZ A AR RAEF
I EREMR B AZENEE -
RE BRI E I 2 RIKEFEH 8
ZME—RERRBEFBELPAF R -

AEBRZFNEEZMECERERES
s AES ([8ES]) 58 - 8iE
Tt Z BRIRBAAA - BTN E R 58
BeAtERRMEEL R/ T - ER

BB LR EZEE R BEBATRILD
BREERAREBNFEHZKE - AEH
A —ERAOHLHEE TERZRIKE
MEBHEF URBAHNENES A&
B AR ENE B 2 E— B EER
BazarEE M EHK -

FR BENEREANGEEHZD A
86,000 L (BEZ - —HF+ = A
=+—B8I1-F%E 153,000 T) °
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29. ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU

On 23 April 2015 a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
has entered into a share transfer agreement for the acquisition
of 49% equity interest of the Yichang Zhongyou for a cash
consideration of HK$100,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). With all
the conditions precedent having been fulfilled and obtaining
control, completion of the Acquisition was taken place on 24
February 2016 and accounted for as business combination
using the acquisition method. Yichang Zhongyou became a
49% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company since then.

The business scope of Yichang Zhongyou includes investment
in natural gas projects, sales of natural gas, natural gas
cooking appliance and accessories and pipeline installation.
Yichang Zhongyou has been granted the approval of exclusive
right to construct and operate the natural gas project in the
industrial parks and commercial area around Wufeng National
Industrial Zone and Yichang New and High (Technology) District
Baiyang Industrial Zone in Zhijiang City, Hubei Province, the
PRC by Hubei Provincial Development and Reform Commission
(BB EMNEZ E ) . The Acquisition is to enhance the
development of the Company and the shareholders’ wealth by
exploring different business opportunities in other sectors.
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29. WIBEE T

RZE-—RFNAZ-Z+=R KA£E2
BB AR LR E R UIRE
& A {f€100,000,0007% T W iE & & B
49% M tE ([WHESEIE]) - BEZ T B R
B E ER W E ST KESE
BER-ZE—RF_A -+ BETKIF
R EARIEEB M -TEHH
UL BN Q B B 49%E 2= v 8 # I
BAAE -

HEFHNEFBERBRERAREA
B HERAR RARRRBARE
HFAREBLZR HET HEEHILE
ERMNEFZBEROOU - HEE
KIENAI R ERILE I H g Rk
TEREREESHERFIXEEREL
TXERBERERMEERAREA
B-WESESBEMREAMBEIHT
REEEEARRNER LIRS KRY

=
= o

[==]
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29. ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU 20. WEBEEHH (&)

(Continued)

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition on 24 February

RWEBB - R"F_A=-+NHH

2016: EEREE:
HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment L ES 128,641
Prepaid lease payments AR E B 1,835
Intangible assets B EE 236,400
Inventories EE 106
Deposits paid for non-current assets FIERBEEL RS 4,038
VAT recoverable AT U [E] 4 (F Fi 6,413
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS 29
377,462
Trade and other payables BB S REMERK (15,271)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders JE - FE 12 AR AR BR SRR (86,707)
Deferred tax liabilities REHRIBEE (59,100)
Bank borrowings RITEE (21,600)
(182,678)
Net assets acquired BWREEEFE 194,784

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition date
represent the interests held by non-controlling shareholders
of Yichang Zhongyou and was measured by reference to the

FERERS

proportionate share of recognised amounts of net assets of -

Yichang Zhongyou.

RUEE B IR AR SR E S
) IE R AR R A KoM s 0 WIRMR D
HEETHEEREEFESRENLLY
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29. ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU 29. WEEEEHH (4)
(Continued)
HK$’000
Goodwill arising on Acquisition KESEELENEE FAT
Consideration RAE
— Cash paid in the current period —AHFEBE AR S 55,000
— Consideration payable (Note i) —FERRE (B 9,999
— Deposit paid in the previous year - BEFEENES 35,001
100,000
Plus: Non-controlling interests N e R A 99,340
Less: Recognised amount of the fair value of B BT B (100%) 7] 3% Bl & B FE R
identifiable net assets acquired (100%) BERERAFEESLE (194,784)
Gooduwill arising on acquisition (Note ii) IS E AR R (ki) 4,556
Notes: B 5 -

(i)

(ii

Consideration payable was included in “Trade and other
payables” in note 21 and will be payable by the Group within
12 months from the acquisition completion date according to
the share transfer agreement and was accounted for as current
liabilities, accordingly.

Goodwill arose in the Acquisition because the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included the benefit of
revenue growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Yichang Zhongyou. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they do not meet
the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

() ENREFAHE2 TRNEZRE
L BRR ] AR IR AR B I e B W
Bk BHR12EAARXN  BitEA
RIVERBEE-

(i) WHBERELHEDHANRRS G M
E’Mﬂﬁi@f?‘ﬂ@%u&mfﬁﬁ RRMIHE
BREEETHMNBEBAFENG %5
%‘m?éﬁifﬁﬁi R BRI RS
AR | AE Z R
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29.

ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU
(Continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$5,921,000 have
been excluded from the cost of acquisition and have been
recognised directly as expenses in both current year and the
year ended 31 December 2015 in the amount of HK$770,000

20. WEBEEHH (&)

U % =5 78 48 B8 A 485,921,000/ L E B
WIERASG TERAFERBEES
T-AF+-A=+t-HLEFEHRE
BRI 770,000 7T &%5,151,000/%8

and HK$5,151,000, respectively. JC e
HK$’000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition KMBELENRESREFE FAT
Consideration paid in cash in the current year rEEEMNBEESRE 55,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired BBERBRERESERE (29)
54,971
Included in the loss for the year is HK$11,693,000 attributable FRNEEEEEETHNERELEN

to the business of Yichang Zhongyou. Revenue for the year
includes HK$2,658,000 generated from Yichang Zhongyou.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016, total
group revenue for the year would have been HK$36,721,000,
and loss for the year would have been HK$43,499,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

11,693,000 T - FRN W BIENREE
rh S 2 A 92,658,000 T ©

WEER—_E—AR"F—A—HZK" F
N & B W S B 58 5 536,721,000/ 7T
FRNEE G A43,499,0008 L fEE &

FHEHHPARSE  WIHFREERERKE
RZE—ARF—HA—BEKMERED
s R ERERT TRIERRER
B FERI -
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HE—

29.

30.

ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU
(Continued)

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group
had Yichang Zhongyou been acquired at the beginning of the
current year, the Directors have:

o calculated depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets acquired on the basis of the fair
values arising in the initial accounting for the business
combination rather than the carrying amounts recognised
in the preacquisition financial statements; and

o determined borrowing costs based on the funding levels,

credit ratings and debt/equity position of the Group after
the business combination.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

T—XNF+-A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

20. WEBEEHH (&)

REEAKE [#HZE ] Yaas Mo M E - fis
WEEEP MmN AFERBAIS &4
BE=xp:

e REXBEMHIMBAKRSNAF
1B FE UL B Al B 75 3R K P RE R

REEFERREYE BEEER
BAMBLEENTE : &

c REAEEREBAENES
KE - ERARRES SRR
BT EERAE -
30. KEHEE
FEBERERA

As at 31 December

Minimum lease payments paid under FRRBKELEHAE
operating leases during the year: ENREREERNNK:

R+t=A=+t—H
2016 2015
= —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
3,867 4,344
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30. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 0. KEMHE (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) TEBEREBA(E)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RS HTER  RESATHELEMN
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable B AEEZ ARKEBEENTRED
operating leases which fall due as follows: ,HH AT :

As at 31 December

BR+=BA=+-—H
2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Within one year 1ER 2,985 4,580
In the second to fifth year inclusive F2EESFRN(BREEMEF) 4,261 6,942
7,246 11,5622
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KERENRIEAEB LS THAYE
Group for certain of its office properties. The leases are Az BHEmEFHHEEBAAE2ES
negotiated for an average term of 2-3 years (2015: 2-3). F(ZZE—RF:283F) -
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. ERKIE
As at 31 December
BW+=BA=+-—H
2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of HEEYE WEREZEH
the acquisition of property, R NS RAE R
plant and equipment, NGRS
development of
systems and networks
— authorised but not contracted for —BEREERTL 500 500
— contracted but not accounted for —BE[HERAR 39,419 -

39,919 500
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. EXEARER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the AEBEBEEHER UERASEEAE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while ERRBEAUNFELE T NEE R
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation MEREZAERRAZ &EFTEMA
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy REFIMEEE R AEE 2 EERE
remains unchanged from prior year. B EFE e
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which REE s ERNEEREGFEEK &
includes amount due to a shareholder, amounts due to non- P EIEN 22 R23FTHE FE 2 FE AR R X
controlling shareholders, and the bank borrowings disclosed in B EAIEERRRERERRITEE
notes 22 and 23, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity HBRBAESRBREEFEUREKRREE A
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued JEhiER (BREEEITRA  HERR
share capital, reserves and retained earnings. BAF) o
The Directors review the capital structure on a bi-annual basis. EETMABENEREB - EAEH
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital 2N EETEeERELAKARER
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based KERZHEERR - BREEECES
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance AEBBEBREITHRG  RBERMD
its overall capital structure through the new share issues and BITHE NFEHEBERERE-
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 33. &I A
Categories of financial instruments EMIAER

As at 31 December

R+=—HB=+-—8
2016 2015
—E-XE —h%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHEIT
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including B3 K pE WK IE
bank balances and cash) (BRRETEHERS) 16,412 59,951
Financial liabilities TRBE
Amortised cost B SH A AR 205,163 3,244
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. €T H (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, deposit paid
for acquisitions, trade and other payables, bank borrowing,
amount due to a shareholder and amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group’s financial
results and its cash flows. Certain trade and other receivables
and bank balances and cash of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Group does not engage in any
foreign currency hedging activities. However, the management
monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should
the need arise.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

HHEEREERERBR

AEBECFECHTIABRERKES R
HRK ROTEHRLBES ENKE
B BNESMEMER  RITEER
& AN S BR SR IR % B A FE P AR AR R RO o
ZECRTAFBRABMNERE-F
BMZEei T ANMS Z AR KREZE
RERzBREN T -EEEBEENE
B FRE g - AR BEE B M B R ER
EEREM-

S

SNERRIER EARBM T RERAER
ERMZINEEZREG R - AEEET
FEUE 5 B EL A AR FUA MR 1T 46 8 3R
T IAINEFHE - AR B E S R AT
Kb Es -AM ERESTNESR
HEMIERE UHREFTERER
HmERZINE R -

RRFBZRXMBRRFAUIINEFEZ
EREE SAKBEERYIIERR-
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33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency

33.

—E-RF+ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

E@MI A (&)

MEEAREEEREREEK (&)

s mbE (E)

EERBUINETECEBEENRE

denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting ,ﬁﬁ%%HTZEE@TEZZDTi
period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BE &
R+t=-A=+-8H R+=A=1+-AH
2016 2015 2016 2015
—AE —RfF —NE —iF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER AL TER AT
HKS BT 10,418 N/ATN 8 B 10,106 N/AZN @
RMB ARE - 759 - 83
United States dollar (‘US$”) En([Ex]) 3,120 147 = =
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) BPYEE ([RPI%]) 30 24 = =
Since the functional currency of the Company has been HRFATKKRETEE+RBELRRF
changed from HK$ to RMB upon completion of the acquisition MM ERERBETLET AARE (W0
of Yichang Zhongyou during the year as stated in note 1, the MizEipral) AEBARANEER-Z

Group entities as at 31 December 2016 are mainly exposed to
foreign currency risk in HK$, US$ and MOP, while the Group
were mainly exposed to foreign currency risk in RMB, US$
and MOP as at 31 December 2015. Since the amount of MOP
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are insignificant as
at 31 December 2016, no sensitivity on its respective foreign
currency risk is prepared, accordingly.

As at 31 December 2015, under the pegged exchange rate
system, the financial exposure on exchange rate fluctuation
between HK$ and US$ and HK$ and MOP considered
insignificant by the directors, while there was no significant
RMB denominated assets and liabilities, no sensitivity analysis
on foreign currency risk was prepared, accordingly.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. €T H (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Below is the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in RMB against HK$ and US$ (2015: HK$ against
RMB and US$). 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. Where RMB strengthen 5% against HK$ and
US$, the Group’s post-tax loss will increase by HK$143,000.
For a 5% weakening of RMB against HK$ and US$, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on post-tax loss.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings (see note 22 for details). The Group cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on interest rates on
bank balances and benchmark interest rate for loan quoted
by the People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB
dominated borrowing.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity analysis has
been prepared.

MEEAREEEREREEK (&)

s mbE (E)
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1tt ff (E?IEEUBH H22) BB 2 RE R
R AEENB RN REREE
E‘:F'E’\\fﬁﬁ EAREENERARPEAR
RITAMOEREENE - MEBER
KEAREEMARKHERE -

ESRRAREARE 2N ERARILTE
K- B I AR SRR E DT ©



138

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREEHEBE R A A |

IWT\

BB HmRNETE (E

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade and
other receivables, the management will only advance credit to
customers or counterparties with good credit history or has
strong financial position. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account of future discounted
cash flows, to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Credit risk is concentrated to a small number of debtors.
However, the management considers, based on the good
credit history and the long term business relationship with the
debtor, there is no significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

33. eI H (%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

Group can be required to pay.

33. eI H (%)

Bt 75 2 Bex

EEERREE (&)

mEBEZEbE (E)

TREIIAKHEZFTESRABERT
ZENBBMHFER R REAKEA
EENE

KEZF ARz EBMAERERR

ERmE-

Carrying
Weighted Total  amount at
average 4 months - 1-2 undiscounted 31 December
interestrate  On demand 1 - 3 months 1 year years  cash flows 2016
R=Z-xE
t=h
KR Er=1
MELHF = RER 123 4BAZ1E 1226 RERLE ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiERx TER TiER TERT TERT TERT
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+ZA=1+-8H
Trade and other payables ERESREMER - - 36,037 - - 36,037 36,037
Amounts due to a shareholder EMRRTE - - - - 11,000 11,000 9,093
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders SRR R - - - - 172,901 172,901 142,933
Bank borrowings RITEE 8.48% - - 18,550 - 18,550 17,100
= 36,037 18550 183,901 238488 205,163
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average 4 months - 1-2 undiscounted 31 December
interest rate~ On demand 1 - 3 months 1 year years cash flows 2015
RZB-1%F
TZA
KRR =t-H
AR T3 7 REX 123R 4ERZE1% 1226 RenuE ZRHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TiEn TR TiEn T TiEn
At 31 December 2015 RZZ2-HAF+-A=1+-H
Trade and other payables ERBSREMER - = 3,244 = = 3,244 3,244
* For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, the weighted * RASERGEEEMS REHKRZ
average interest rate at the end of the reporting period is used ED$§$1’J%'J S EFHEA*EEEE BERE
for undiscounted cash flows analysis. DA
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flows.

The Directors consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

No analysis of fair value measurements is presented as the
Group does not have financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

33. eI H (%)

MEEAREEEREREEK (&)

mEBEZEbE (E)

i % B A R 2 BEEY A IR RS B 45 RS
BEZBHANEES . FAFTESH
BEFRITAZERASHREH-

AVE

TRMEERERABZAFEREIR
BenEAREBEREAEE -

ESRRRBHERARGE MBRKD
ReemEENERABHRAERAR
FERE-

HRASKEY ERVIAERRELRAE
BHRREAFEAEZEHTE B
REJNRFEABZDM-



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BBHBiMEBARART | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 £ 141

e B mRME (8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 34. BEFIKE
(a) Transactions with a related party (a) HBEEFXRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial brize Mgk A Al o PRIk EE -
statements, the Group had entered into the following REFMEERFFI AT S :

transactions with a related party:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-BA=+—HBLHEE

2016 2015
Name of related party Nature of transaction —E-XRF —E—RF
HMELER REME HK$’000 HK$’000
New Front Cultural

Communications Limited Advertising expenses
TG XL EHEER QA BERX - 874
New Front Cultural Communications Limited is a related FEEXEBERERARRC-E
company prior to 3 June 2016 as it was controlled by Mr. —NFNAZHAIABEQR
Wei Yue Tong, a prior director of the Company who has REBRER=ZZE-—R"FXHA=H
resigned on 3 June 2016. BECATESRAZELEMT
il o
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) ETEBEBEABZHMH

The Directors and the five highest paid individuals are EERNEERFATHEAK
identified as key management members of the Group, SECZFEEREKE  BERF

their compensation during the year is set out in note 11. A N iR R
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35. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2016
and 2015 are as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
E-FT—R"F+ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &%

RRBEWERRR

35. f[fE 2 A

\ZE-RERZT

—HF+ZA=+—RZHFBWET:

Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
BETR
WELAREE AL AR L 3t B BRBRE rEEELRE TEER
2016 2015
-~E —hf
Bright Able Century Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BB LEARAF AERTHS 1ET REZR
Calgary Investments Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
s 17T REZR
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. British Virgin Islands USs$1 100% 100%  Inactive
KBRS E WEEB
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Bt 28T REZR
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision
of an e-commerce platform
YETBARAERAR Bt 2B REEREREESFHETA
Global Billion Access Investments British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
RIGERREERA KBRS EY REZR
Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited PRC HK$14,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RIERES ORI A i 14,000,0007 10 100% 100% REER
Honest (Macao Commercial Macau MOP100,000 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services,
Offshore) Limited data processing and selling
activities
EBCEMBFAZRE)BRAF BP9 100,000:2F9 % REFZARS BEEER
HERE
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited
BERMERREBRAR BB 18T REZK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

35. B AT (&)

Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
2RTK
WEARER Edilvsh BRBRE EEEELRE TEER
2016 2015
-~E —hF
Hong Kong King Sailing Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive and not yet commence
in business
BETMERLF BE BT 100% 100% UEEBREAHEES
King Sailing International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
TRERARAF RBRERES 1% 100% 100% REER
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce platform
for design of garments
Bt 1,000 7T 100% 100% ARRKRFARESFHETS
Pickworth Limited Samoa Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEED 1T 100% 100% HEER
Rich Ascent Intemational Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Commodity trading
LEERABRA £ 1T 100% 100% BEmEH
Shenzhen Global Billion Access PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive and not yet commence
Investment Management in business
Company Limited
RYTRFERREERERRA e AR 100% 100% WEEBREARRER
1,000,0007C
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERRAF B 18T 100% 100% BEZER
Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas PRC RMB30,000,000 49% - Natural gas operation
Utilization Co., Ltd
BAARFAERAR HE AR 49% - RAREB
30,000,0007T (Note)
(P&E)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the both years or at any time during the both years.

1A P {8 4F [2 72 48 By X 0 R ) F 2 R (e
RE SMBARBIETMNREEZE

BES o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Bz

35.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Note:

Notes 27 and 29 describe that Yichang Zhongyou is a subsidiary of
the Group even though the Group has only 49% ownership interest in
Yichang Zhongyou.

The Group has held 49% equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou since 24
February 2016 and #iLEH KA R AR A (Hubei Biaodian Natural
Gas Co., Ltd.”) (“Hubei Biaodian”) and Mr. Li Wan Qing (collectively the
“Non-controlling Shareholders”), both were independent third parties to
the Group, owned 41% and 10% equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou,
respectively.

The Directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), assessed whether or not the Group has
control over Yichang Zhongyou based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of Yichang Zhongyou
unilaterally. In making their judgement, the Directors considered
the Group’s power to affect the Board of Directors (the “BOD”) of
Yichang Zhongyou. The BOD of Yichang Zhongyou, responsible for
all relevant activities of Yichang Zhongyou, consisted of 6 directors,
of which 3 were appointed by the Group while the other 3 directors
were appointed by the Non-controlling Shareholders. BOD resolutions
of Yichang Zhongyou were reached by simple majority. In accordance
with the terms of a further shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and the Non-controlling Shareholders, in any
events where the Group and the Non-controlling Shareholders have
diversed views in the BOD meetings, the Group, as the single largest
shareholder of Yichang Zhongyou, has the power to make the final
decision.

After assessment, the Directors concluded that the Group has a
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of
Yichang Zhongyou and therefore the Group has control over Yichang
Zhongyou.

*

English name is for identification purpose only.

35.
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36. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36. XA EMRRE
POSITION

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—-8H
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FABT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB k& 428 1,041
Interests in subsidiaries NN ol 130,246 74,450
130,674 75,491
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables JrE U i BR 3R 2,125 981
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRNMIR S 7,143 13,278
9,268 14,259
Current liability mEBAEE
Other payables FERT B A BR X 1,488 2,963
Net current assets mENEEFE 7,780 11,296
Non-current liability EREBAE
Amount due to a shareholder JE AR B R FRIE
of the Company 9,093 =
Net assets BEFE 129,361 86,787
Capital and reserves BEARKGFEE
Share capital % 7S 28,275 19,800
Reserves (Note) i (PEE) 101,086 66,987
Equity attributable to owners of RARHEE AEGRER

the Company 129,361 86,787
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36. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36. A DT MBEMRRE (&)
POSITION (continued)

Note: P = -
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the year are as follows: AABRAFEZ FEEZBWOT
Capital Special Share Other Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve losses Total
ERfGE BRIRE R EE Hitt 4y 2 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRL TR FHT FEL FTREL
At 1 January 2015 R-E-R&—f—A 7,640 1,071 49,561 - (40,457) 18,715
Total comprehensive expense  AEIR 2 E X 2
for the period - - - - (74,819 (74,819)
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBR - - 125,640 - = 125,640
Expenses incurred in connection E{TEBMEELZ i
with issue of ordinary shares - - (2,549) - - (2,549)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF
+-B=+-8 7,640 1,071 172,652 - (115,276) 66,987
Total comprehensive expense ~ AEE2E X HAEH
for the year - - - - (18,660) (18,660)
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBR - - 50,850 - = 50,850
Deemed capital contribution BRRBHRIEENE RS
arising from non-current ERMEEL
interest-free loan from RELE
a shareholder - - - 1,909 - 1,909
At 31 December 2016 i

2
A=+-H 7,640 1,971 223,502 1,909 (133,936) 101,086
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BE_T—A"F+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

37.

*

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 October 2016, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a subscription agreement
the
(Xinjiang

(the “Subscription Agreement”) with, among others,
founding shareholders of ¥152E HRIEEE R A A
Guoliyuan Investment Co., Ltd.*) (“Xinjiang Guoliyuan”)
(“Founding Shareholders”) and Xinjiang Guoliyuan, both are
independent third parties, pursuant to which the subsidiary of
the Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
inject RMB105,000,000 (equivalent to HK$119,700,000) into
Xinjiang Guoliyuan. Xinjiang Guoliyuan and its subsidiaries
were principally engaged in the development, promotion and
investment of paper-making industry and provision of technical
and consultancy services.

Following completion of the Subscription Agreement, the
subsidiary of the Company will hold 35% of the equity interest
of Xinjiang Guoliyuan, and as assessed by the Director, Xinjiang
Guoliyuam would then become an associate of the Group.

Subsequently, on 4 January 2017 and 24 January 2017,
the Group and all the relevant controlling parties of the
Subscription Agreement entered into the second and third
supplemental agreements, pursuant to which, the contracting
parties to the Subscription Agreement agreed to further extend
the long stop date from 31 December 2016 to 30 April 2017
(or such later date as agreed by the Group).

As at the date of this report, the acquisition is still incomplete

as conditions precedent as stated in the Subscription
Agreement have not yet been fulfilled.

English name is for identification purpose only.

37.
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Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=t-HLEE

Year ended 30 June
BEANAZTHLEE

2016 2015 2014 2014 2013 2012
SR “T-hF _T-OmF —T-MF —T-=F —_T-_F
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THERT FTET FTET FTET FTET FEL
RESULTS E
Revenue Wz 36,379 217,068 25,865 3,792 3,066 3,003
Cost of sales HEMKR (35,341) (216,775)  (24,887) - - -
Gross profit 7 1,038 293 978 3,792 3,066 3,003
Other income =t L ON 38 105 26 42 1 5
Selling and distribution cost HERDHEKR (13,068) (2,881) (92) (210) (228) (249)
General and administrative —RRITBIEARITE
expenses and depreciation (28,369) (78,972 (11,483) (5,679) (5,501) (5,511)
Other gains and losses HEHhaRER (374) - - - - -
Finance cost R A (39) - - - - -
Loss before taxation B EE (40,774) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752)
Income tax credit GiEcEkin) 1,585 - = = = =
Loss for the year/period AFE/HHEZER (39,189)  (81,455)  (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752)
Loss for the year attributable to: A FALTEEAEE 2
Ba:
Owners of the Company N/NIE ZEDN (33,224)  (81,455) (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752)
Non-controlling interest FERER (5,965) - - - - -
Loss for the year/period AEE/HHEZER (39,189)  (81,455)  (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752)
At 31 December At 30 June
R+=ZB=+-H RAA=1H
2016 2015 2014 2014 2013 2012
—§-»"% —T-IFf C-FT-NmF —T-mF ZT-=F ZF--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET FAET FAET FET FiET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERBE
Non-current assets ERBEE 457,038 57,275 3,446 = = i
Current assets MEAE 25,695 26,486 34,758 4,717 6,717 10,328
Current liabilities hEEE (53,765) (3,244) (1,063) (1,105) (1,050) (2,000)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (206,611) - - - - -
222,357 80,517 37,141 3,612 5,667 8,329
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